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Financial Highlights
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
Revenues

Net income (loss)
Total investments
Total assets

Unpaid losses and loss
adjustment expenses

Sharecholders’ equity

Diluted weighted average
shares outstanding

Diluted earnings (loss) per share
Dividends paid per share

Frice Range o

2007 High
First Quarter $ 19.00
Second Quarter 22.27
Third Quarter 20.79

Fourth Quarter 18.99

2001

$108,492

(13,139)
366,167
856,997

534,189
199,272

9,232
$ (1.42)

2001 Low
$ 17.6C
18.15
15.85
15.60

2000
$100,733

(5,502)
371,291
720,329

411,267
216,290

9,244
$ (.60)
$ .40

2000 High
$ 14.38
15.38

15.56

15.19

1999

$ 89,494
16,413
396,710
764,304

425,469
231,142

9,687
$ 1.69
$ 40

2000 Low
$ 12.38
i3.13

£3.00
£5.00




Charman's Viessage

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

It is impossible to think of the year 200 without focusing in on September | Ith and its impact on
NYMAGIC families and close business relationships. We at NYMAGIC remain deeply saddened by the
human tragedies that stemmed from these unthinkable events, and fervently hope that this kind of thing will
never happen again.

Having been active insurers of global aviation airline business during the past seventeen years, we
experienced a proportionate share of this enormous industry loss which has now stabilized for us at
approximately $9 million on an after-tax basis. Earlier in the year, after a prolonged down cycle, aviation
rates were beginning to reflect a substantial correction. Indications were that 2001 would be an excellent
year for aviation underwriters, but this of course changed on September | Ith. Overall, however, we have
determined that the long term business prospects for this class are not attractive and, effective April |,
2002, we ceased writing new and renewal aviation business.

Our ocean marine business came to the end of its downward cycle. We not only achieved significant rate
increases during the year, but we were able to develop new business on favorable terms.

After four years of Lloyd’s involvement — three with our own Managing Agency writing on behalf
of Syndicate 1265, and one as a minority participant in Cathedral Underwriting Agency, writing on behalf
of Syndicate 2010, we concluded that the amount of capital needed to sustain a Lloyd’s presence could
be utilized more effectively for emerging opportunities in the U.S. Consequently, we withdrew our
underwriting support of Lioyd’s at year end.

For several years, we sat on the sidelines watching Excess and Surplus lines rates spiral downward. In
2001 this changed dramatically and when pricing rose to levels we had previously established as adequate,
we re-entered the market actively. E&S business is not dissimilar to the whole property and casualty
spectrum in thatitis cyclical. At present and for the near future we are in an “up” market and we expect to
take advantage of the profitable opportunities being presented.

Qur business plan calls for selective diversification into other insurance areas in order to broaden the
scope of our product lines. As part of this strategy we hired an experienced professional liability under-
writer to develop a book of miscellaneous errors and omissions insurance, targeting small commercial
operations. We continue our search for specialty areas that are non-catastrophic and that offer good
prospects for profit.

Despite the shadow cast by the events of September 1 |th, we managed to withstand the largest loss
ever with our financial stability very much intact. We proceeded according to plan and because rates in all
areas accelerated upwards we are ahead of premium projections and have positive momentum going
forward. As painful as it was at the time to withdraw from Lloyd’s and the aviation business, it was the right
decision in each case. As a result of the refining process that our book of business has undergone during the
past two years, we expect to produce a less volatile and more manageable portfolio that we trust will

ultimately result in enhanced shareholder value.




CcraN MARINE

The rising tide of rate increases in all lines was particularly gratifying for ocean marine underwriters who
have experienced too many lean years. We continued to write a substantial book of diversified marine
coverages with a bottom line profit. Our major class - marine liability — has produced consistent profit over
many years, and last year provided both pricing increases on existing business and new business growth.

We wrote hull and cargo insurance with each area enjoying healthy growth. Energy business, which had
been in the doldrums for a number of years, produced substantial premium increases as a result of the loss
of Rig P36, off the Coast of Brazil. Although we were not directly affected by this industry loss totaling
$600 million, the ensuing market correction and across-the-board rate hikes offered us extraordinary
opportunities in this sector.

We again enjoyed the continued support of our producers.

BVIATION

As previously stated, the aviation account had been experiencing very welcome increases in rates.
Following September | I, this process was accelerated and continues into 2002. However, rate increases
are offset by the increased cost of reinsurance protection that this high stakes business requires.
Cur decision to withdraw stemmed from a combination of projected loss retention costs and increased
reinsurance prices. These in combination left no foreseeable margin for profit. The volatile nature of the
business and the increasing loss potential from terrorism makes this a game for very large companies or
pools of insurers.

OTHER LIABILITY

We have been able to develop and sustain significant growth in our liability lines while continuing to
maintain the same conservative underwriting posture that had effectively taken us out of this market during
the late 1990’s.

As many carriers and facilities either withdrew from liability lines or went out of business during 2001,
we were able to provide a market for our producers at prices and terms that reflect fair value for the
exposures. Writing both through our E &S company Gotham Insurance Company, and as amember of the
New York Free Trade Zone, we are providing coverage for selected contractors and businesses in
New York City, as well as products liability and general liability across the country. In addition, we have
established ourselves as a provider of claims-made errors and omissions coverage for smaller commercial
enterprises that have been neglected by the larger U.S. insurers.




INLAND MARINE AND PROPERTY

Our inland marine and property lines have grown from a small portfolio to a sizeable book of business
as a result of the development of managed inland cargo and commercial property programs written
through regional producers. As with virtually all other lines of business within NYMAGIC, this book has
experienced pricing increases that on average appear to be adequate and present a reasonable opportunity
for profit.

PEOPLE

This year | again commend the considerable talent of our underwriters, supporting service and opera-
tions’ staffs. Because we have maintained discipline and consistency, we are well positioned to make the
most of unprecedented market opportunities.

While underwriting produces the wherewithal for operating activity, it cannot grow and prosper without
the support of accounting, claims, human resources, legal and information technology. We enjoy the
services and skills of a very talented group of people in these areas.

| am pleased to also acknowledge that we have maintained the loyalty and stability of our people resulting
in very little turnover.

FINANCIAL STABILITY

One important measure of an insurance company'’s strength is the ratio of writings to policyholders’
surplus. A conservative ratiois 2 to 1, i.e., writings equal to twice the amount of surplus. We are at a level
of 0.5 to |, meaning we have room for growth without making a contribution to surplus. This financial
strength allowed us to absorb the impact of September | Ith without weakening our strong financial
foundation. Italso permits us the opportunity to actively pursue new business expansion.

Another positive reflection of our economic health is the relatively small debt load we enjoy. This gives
us a degree of flexibility when looking ahead for business opportunities.

LooxinG AHEAD

The insurance business of today is much different from a decade ago, or even five years ago. Itis more
complex and operates in fast forward mode. In order to compete, a company must make decisions quickly
and accurately. While learning from the past, it must be looking forward. Too many companies exist from
quarter to quarter without focusing on the end game. We at NYMAGIC have established a foundation that
will permit us to move into new areas without losing touch with our core businesses.

Robert W, Bailey
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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FORWARD = LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains certain forward-looking statements concerning the Company’s operations, economic performance
and financial condition, including, in particular, the likelihood of the Company’s success in developing and expanding
its business. Any forward-looking statements concerning the Company’s operations, economic performance and financial
condition contained herein, including statements related to the outtook for the Company’s performancein 2001 and beyond,
are made under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements are based
upon a number of assumptions and estimates which inherently are subject to uncertainties and contingencies, many of which
are beyond the control of the Company. Some of these assumptions may not materialize and unanticipated events may occur
which could cause actual results to differ materially from such statements. These include, but are not limited to, the cyclical
nature of the insurance and reinsurance industry, premium rates, the estimation of loss reserves and loss reserve development,
the uncertainty surrounding the loss amounts related to the attacks of September | |, 2001, netloss retention, the effect of
competition, the ability to collect reinsurance receivables, the availability and cost of reinsurance, and changes in the ratings
assigned to the Company by rating agencies. These risks could cause actual results for the 2001 year and beyond to differ
materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made. The Company undertakes no obligation to update
publicly or revise any forward-looking statements made.

Such statements are made under the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These
statements may include, but are not limited to, projections of premium revenue, investment income, other revenue, losses,
expenses, earnings, cash flows, plans for future operations, common stockholders’ equity, investments, capital plans,
dividends, plans relating to products or services, adequacy of Asbestos/Environmental reserves, collectability of receivables
from Equitas and other events and estimates concerning the effects of litigation or other disputes, as well as assumptions of any

M RT3 ” i ” %

of the foregoing and are generally expressed with words such as “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “plans,”

” o«

goals,

” & ” &

“projects,” “forecasts, could have,” “may have” and similar expressions. ¥e undertake no obligation to update

forward-looking statements, whether as aresult of new information, future events or otherwise. You are advised, however, to

consult any further disclosures we make in our reports to the Securities and Exchange Commission including, but not limited
to, the Company’s 10-Q and 8-K reports.




Part [

Item 1. Business

General

NYMAGIC, INC,, a New York corporation (the “Company” or “NYMAGIC”), is a holding company which owns and
operates the following insurance companies, risk bearing entities and insurance underwriters and managers:

Insurance Companies and Lloyd’s Corporate Capital Vehicle:

New York Marine And General Insurance Company - (“New York Marine”)
Gotham Insurance Company - (“Gotham”)

MMO UK, Ltd. - (“MMO UK”)

MMOEU, Ltd. - (“MMOEU")

Insurance Underwriters and Managers:

Mutual Marine Office, Inc. - ("MMO”)
Pacific Mutual Marine Office, Inc. - (“PMMQO”)
Mutual Marine Office of the Midwest, Inc. - (“Midwest”)

New York Marine and Gotham each maintains an A.M. Best rating of A. Several of the Company’s insureds rely on ratings
issued by rating agencies. Any adverse change in the rating assigned to the Company may adversely impact its ability to write
premiums.

The Company specializes in underwriting ocean marine, inland marine, aircraft and other liability insurance through
insurance pools managed by MMO, PMMO, and Midwest (collectively referred to as “MMO and affiliates”) since 1964. In
addition to managing the insurance pools, the Company participates in the risks underwritten for the pools through New York
Marine and Gotham. All premiums, losses and expenses are prorated among pool members in accordance with their pool
participation percentages.

In 1997, the Company formed MMO EU as a holding company for MMO UK, which operates as a limited liability corporate
vehicle to provide capacity, or the ability to underwrite a certain amount of business, for syndicates within Lloyd’s of London.
In 1997, the Company acquired ownership of a company, which was subsequently renamed MMO Underwriting Agency, Ltd.
MMO Underwriting Agency Ltd., a Lloyd’s managing agency, commenced underwriting in | 998 for the Company’s wholly
owned subsidiary MMO UK, which provided 100% of the capacity for Syndicate 1265. In 2000, the Company sold MMO
Underwriting Agency Ltd. in exchange for a minority interest in Cathedral Capital PLC and Syndicate 1265 was placed into
runoff. In 2001, MMO UK provided approximately $13.6 million, or 11.2%, of the capacity for Syndicate 2010, which is
managed by Cathedral Capital. As of January |, 2001, in order to provide capacity for MMO London, the Company main-
tained funds at Lioyd’s equal to $1.5 million and an unsecured letter of credit from abank in British Pounds Sterling with a US
dollar equivalent of approximately $23.9 million. MMO EU, MMO UK, Syndicate 1265 and Syndicate 2010 are collectively
hereinafter referred to as “MMO London”. In 2002, MMO UK will not be providing capacity to any Lloyd’s syndicate.

The Pools

MMO, located in New York, PMMO, located in San Francisco, and Midwest, located in Chicago (the “Manager” or the
“Managers”), manage the insurance pools in which the Company participates.

The Manager accepts, on behalf of the pools, insurance risks brought to the pools by brokers and others. All premiums,
losses and expenses are prorated among the pool members in accordance with their percentage participations in the pools.
Pursuant to the pool management agreements, the pool members have agreed not to accept ocean marine insurance (other
than ocean marine reinsurance) unless received through the Manager and have authorized the Manager to accept risks on
behalf of the pool members and to effect all transactions in connection with such risks, including the issuance of policies and
endorsements and the adjustment of claims. As compensation for its services, the Manager receives a fee of 5.5% of gross
premiums written by the pools and a contingent commission of 10% on net underwriting profits, subject to adjustment.

The Manager also receives profit commissions on pool business ceded to reinsurers under various reinsurance agreements.
These profit commissions are calculated on an earned premium basis using inception to date underwriting results for the
various reinsurance treaties and is recorded in the period in which the related profit commission is billed. Adjustments to
commissions, resulting from revisions in coverage, retroactive or audit adjustments, are recorded in the period when realized.




Subject to review by the reinsurers, the Managers calculate the profitability of all profit commission agreements placed with
various reinsurance companies.

The Company’s participation in the business underwritten for the pools by the Manager has increased over the years and,
since January |, 1997, the Company has had a 100% participation in all lines of business produced by the pools.

Two former pool members, Utica Mutual Insurance Company (“Utica Mutual”) and Arkwright Mutual Insurance Company
(“Arkwright”), currently part of the FM Global Group, withdrew from the pools in 1994 and 1996, respectively, and retained
liability for their effective pool participation for all loss reserves, including IBNR (incurred but not reported) and unearned
premium reserves attributable to policies effective prior to their withdrawal from the pools.

The Company is not aware of any uncertainties with respect to any possible defaults by either Arkwright or Utica Mutual
with respect to their pool obligations, which might impact liquidity or results of operations of the Company.

Assets and liabilities resulting from the insurance pools are allocated to the members of the insurance pools based upon the
pro rata participation of each member in each pool which is set forth in the management agreement entered into by and
between the pool participants and the Managers.

Investment Policy

The Company follows an investment policy, which is reviewed quarterly and revised periodically by management and the
Finance Committee of the Board of Directors.

The investment policy for New York Marine, which conforms to the requirements contained in the New York State
Insurance Law and Regulations, as of December 31, 2001 was as follows:

1. Liquid Funds - Itis the Company’s policy to maintain a minimum of 7-1/2% of investable funds in cash; certificates of
deposit; prime bankers acceptances; prime commercial paper; tax-exempts rated Aa3/AA- or MIG 2 or better; tax-
exempts rated Aa3 or AA- by one service and unrated by the other (not to exceed $5,000,000 par value in any one
institution); obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies due in one year or less; and tax-exempt notes with a split
Al/AA- or Aa3/A+ rating (not to excead $500,000 in any one institution).

2. BondFunds
A) Tax-exempt securities and obligations of private corporations rated Baa2/BBB or better by each service which
provides arating, not to exceed $5,000,000 maturity value per issuing entity; maturities not to exceed December 3|
of the 20th year, except as indicated in 3) below with respect to Housing issues, from the purchase date, to include:

I} Pollution-control bonds guaranteed by industrial corporations rated Baa2/BBB or bettar.

2) Pre-refunded bonds.

3) Housing issues sponsored by the U.S. Government and its agencies secured by underlying mortgage securities
with maturities not in excess of 30 years and average maturities notin excess of 20 years.

4) Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities (CMBS) with arating not less than AA2/AA and ali such investments
in CMBS, collectively, notin excess of 10% of total investments.

B) Preferred stocks with sinking funds, rated Baa2/BBB or better, limited to $500,000 par value per issuer for new
issues; to $500,000 purchase price for outstanding issues.

C) Obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies.

D) Allinvestments in Bonds rated less than A3/A- limited to 7% of total investments.

3. Equity Funds

A) Equities (including convertible securities) - Not more than 25% of policyholders’ surplus, and investment in any one
institution not to exceed five percent (5%) of policyholders’ surplus at the time of purchase as last reported to the
New York State Insurance Department.

B) Subsidiaries - New York Marine's investments in subsidiary companies are exciuded from the requirements of New
York Marine’s investment policy.

The investment policy of Gotham is similar to that of New York Marine except that Gotham is limited to $2,000,000
maturity value for its investments in liquid and bond funds.




The investments of the Company’s subsidiaries must also conform to the requirements contained in the New York State
Insurance Law and Regulations.

The Company’s investments are monitored by management and the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors. New
York Marine’s fixed income portfolio is managed by Sanford Bernstein & Co.(SB&C). New York Marine’s equity portfolio is
managed, in part, by SB&C and, in part, by Groupama Asset Management. Gotham has its fixed income portfolio managed by
SB&C and its equity portfolio managed by Rorer Asset Management. The Company’s MMO London investments are managed
by Aberdeen Asset Managers Ltd. See “Subsidiaries”.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company’s fixed maturities and equity securities were invested at fair market vajue as
follows:

NYMAGIC, INC. New York Marine Gotham MMO Londom
(In thousands)
Bonds Rated A3 or better $-0- $174574 $58,581 $7.475
Bonds Rated Baa2 or Baal -0- 10,039 3816 -0-
Equities 0- 29,519 13,420 3,319
Segments

The Company considers its domestic insurance/agency companies and MMO London as appropriate segments to conduct
its business operations. The Company’s overall performance is evaluated through its two main business segments.

The domestic insurance companies consist of New York Marine and Gotham. New York Marine and Gotham underwrite
insurance business by accepting risks generally through insurance brokers. The domestic insurance companies engage in
business in all 50 states as well as accept business risks in such worldwide regions as Europe, Asia, and Latin America. See
“Regulation”. The domestic insurance agencies consist of MMO, PMMO and Midwest. These agencies underwrite all the
business for the domestic insurance companies. Revenues from this segment include premiums, investment income and
contingent commissions from reinsurance transactions. Expenses include losses incurred, loss adjustment expenses, policy
acquisition costs and general and administrative expenses.

MMO London consists of its insurance participation in Lloyd’s of London. Lioyd’s provides worldwide venues for MMO
London to underwrite insurance. Revenues from this segment include premiums, investment income, contingent commissions
from reinsurance transactions and other income. Expenses include losses incurred, loss adjustment expenses, policy acquisi-
tion costs and generzl and administrative expenses. In 2002, MMO UK will not provide capacity to any Lloyd's syndicate.

The domestic insurance/agency companies segment underwrites ocean marine, inland marine, aircraft and non-marine
liability lines of insurance.

Ocean marine insurance is written on a direct and assumed reinsurance basis and covers abroad range of classes, including
marine hull, primary and excess marine liabilities, drilling rig, marine cargo and war risks.

Inland marine insurance traditionally includes property while being transported, or property of amovable, or “floating”
nature. Inland marine, among other things, includes insurance for motor truck cargo and transit shipments, equipment floaters
and miscellaneous property floaters. Inland marine also includes excess &surplus lines property coverage on unique or hard
to place commercial property risks that do not fit into standard commercial lines companies. Excess and surplus lines
property risks are written primarily through Gotham.

Aircraftinsurance includes hull and engine insurance, liability insurance as well as products liability insurance. Coverageis
written on adirect and assumed reinsurance basis. The Company announced in a press release, dated March |4, 2002, that
it will withdraw from writing any new or renewal direct aircraft policy effective on or after March 31, 2002.

Non-marine liability insurance is written on a direct and assumed reinsurance basis and includes, among other things,
coverage for manufacturers and contractors risks, building owners and commercial stores, miscellaneous errors and
omissions/professional fiabilities and other casualty excess and surplus line risks written primarily through Gotham.

Business obtained by MMO London through Syndicate 1265 included ocean marine insurance. Business obtained through
Syndicate 2010 included treaty reinsurance of property and aircraft insurance. MMO London will not be providing capacity
to any Lloyd’s syndicate in 2002.




The following tables set forth the Company’s gross and net written premiums, after reinsurance ceded, including business
from MMO London.

Gross Premiums Written by

Line of Business Year Ended December 31,
20010 2000 1999
{Dollars in thousands)
Ocean Maring (@) .....covereenreiererenrinenes $ 72,006 49% $ 83,178 62% $ 71,000 60%
Inland Maring ....coccevvveeeevnveeceeee e 2,334 1% 1,433 1% 740 —
AIFCraft ceveveeriireirere e srevessnens 50,485 34% 46,392 34% 44,579 38%
Other liability ....ccovoveeverrercccncirereneee 5,528 4% 3,269 3% 2,084 2%
Other (b) covveeeeveiriieeeeeeerceeeeees 17,290 12% 322 — 6 —_
ToLAl oo s $147,643 100% $134,594 (00% $118,409 100%

Net Premiums Written by

Line of Business Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)
Ocean Marine (C) ..c.ccuveeeererereesaieenacans $49,128 55% $60,100 67% $48,564 87%
Inland Marine. ....ccccovvevervreiricvreneeneenn, 656 1% 517 1% 153 —
AIFCraft covereiceiieei vt 26,556 30% 25,060 28% 5,319 9%
Other liability ...cooveeceeereeereneeenenne 4,661 5% 3,239 4% 2,064 4%
Other (d) ..ccoveeeveeeernresreeeereneerarennes 8,691 9% 322 — 6 —
TOLA oo $89,692 1G0% $8%,238 100% $56,106 1060%

(@) Includes gross premiums written from MMO London of $8,474, $35,898 and $23,273 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
(b) Includes gross premiums written from MMO Londen of $13,158 for 2001.

(€) Includes net premiums written from MMO London of $3,438, $27,654 and $17,365 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
(d) Includes net premiums written from MMO London of $7,816 for 2001.

Reinsurance Ceded

A reinsurance transaction takes place when an insurance company transfers (cedes) a portion or all of its liability on
insurance written by it to another insurer. The reinsurer assumes the liability in return for a portion or all of the premium. The
ceding of reinsurance does not legally discharge the insurer from its direct liability to the insured under the policies including,
butnot limited to, payment of valid claims under the policies. The Company, through the pools, cedes the greater part of its
reinsurance through annual reinsurance agreements (treaties) with other insurance companies. These treaties, which cover
entire lines or classes of insurance, allow the Company to automatically reinsure risks without having to cede liability on a
policy by policy (facultative) basis, although facultative reinsurance is utilized on occasion.

Generally, the Managers place reinsurance with companies which have an A.M. Best rating of A- or greater or which have
sufficient finandial strength, in management’s opinion, to warrant being used for reinsurance protections. The Managers also
examine financial statements of reinsurers and review such statements for financial soundness. In addition, the Company,
through the pools, withholds funds and may obtain letters of credit under reinsurance treaties. The Company continues to
monitor the financial status of all reinsurers on an regular basis, as well as the timely receipt of cash, to assess the ability of
reinsurers to pay reinsurance claims.

The Company, through the pools, attempts to limit its exposure from losses on any one occurrence through the use of
various excess of loss, quota share and facultative reinsurance arrangements and to minimize the risk of default by any one
reinsurer by reinsuring risks with many different reinsurers. The Company utilizes many separate reinsurance treaties each
year with a range of 8 to 20 reinsurers participating on each treaty. Many reinsurers participate on multiple treaties. The




Company utilizes quota share reinsurance treaties in which the reinsurers participate on a set proportional basis in both
premiums and losses. Additionally, the Company utilizes excess of loss reinsurance treaties in which the reinsurers, in
exchange for aminimum premium, subject to upward adjustment based upon premium volume, agree to pay for that part of
each loss in excess of an agreed upon amount. The Company’s retention of exposure, net of these treaties, varies between its
different classes of business and from year to year, depending on several factors including the pricing environment on both the
direct and ceded book of business and the availability of reinsurance. In general, reinsurance is obtained for each line of
business when necessary to reduce the Company’s exposure to a maximum of $2 million for any one insured on any one
occurrence. The Company can and does, from time to time, retain lizbility in excess of $2 million for any one insured on any
one occurrence. Such instances, when they occur, generally reflecta business decision regarding the cost and/or the availabil-
ity of reinsurance.

The Company attempts to limit its exposure from catastrophes through the purchase of general excess of loss reinsurance,
which provides coverage in the event that multiple insureds incur losses arising from the same occurrence. These coverages
require the Company to pay a minimum premium, subject to upward adjustment based upon premium volume. The treaties,
which extend in general for a twelve month period, obligate the reinsurers to pay for the portion of the Company’s aggregate
losses (net of specific reinsurance) which fall within each treaty’s coverage. In the event of a loss, the Company may be
obligated to pay additional reinstatement premiums under its excess of loss reinsurance treaties, to the extent that such
treaties cover a portion of the loss and in an amount not greater than the original premium paid under such treaties. Every
effortis made to purchase sufficient reinsurance coverage to protect the Company against the cumulative impact of several
losses arising from a single occurrence, but there is no guarantee that such reinsurance coverage will prove sufficient.

The Company reinsures risks with several domestic and foreign reinsurers as well as syndicates including Lloyd’s of London
(“Lloyd’s”). The Company’s consolidated domestic insurance companies’ [argest unsecured reinsurance receivables on a
statutory basis as of December 31, 2001, were from Arkwright, Utica Mutual, Lloyd’s (including amounts from Equitas, a
company established to settle claims for underwriting years 1992 and prior), and Swiss Reinsurance America Corp. (“Swiss
Re”), with aggregate unsecured reinsurance receivables of approximately $ 18 million, $8 million, $77 million (including $5
million from Equitas) and $6 million, respectively. In addition, as of December 31, 2001, the Company maintains unsecured
reinsurance receivables of approximately $12 million from a reinsurer which is under corporate reorganization proceedings.
In 2001, the Company provided an allowance of $2.8 million against such receivables. It is reasonably possible that the
Company may receive from this reinsurer future recoveries that are less than the reinsurance receivables. Under such
circumstances, the Company’s results from operations would be adversely affected in the future.

The most recent A.M. Best rating was A+ for Arkwright, A for Utica Mutual, and A++ for Swiss Re. Lloyd’s maintains a trust
fund, which was established for the benefit of all United States ceding companies. For the three most recent years for which
Lloyd’s has reported results, 1998, 1997, and 1996, Lloyd’s reported losses in 1998 and 1997, and profitin 1996. Lloyd’s is
expected to report losses for the 2000 and 1999 years as well. The Company has not experienced difficulties in collecting
amounts due from Lloyd’s and the timing of cash receipts has not materially affected the Company’s liguidity. Equitas
maintains policyholders’ surplus at March 31,2001 of approximately 700 million Pounds Sterling (US$ | billion). However,
given the uncertainty surrounding the adequacy of surplus and sufficiency of assets in Equitas to meet its ultimate obligations,
there is a reasonable possibility that the Company’s collection efforts relating to reinsurance receivables from Equitas might
be adversely affected in the future.

AtDecember 31,2001, the Company’s reinsurance receivables from reinsurers, other than those indicated above, were
approximately $ 174 million, including amounts recoverable for paid losses, case loss reserves, IBNR losses and unearned
premiums. This amountis recoverable collectively from approximately 660 reinsurers or syndicates, no single one of which
was liable to the Company for an unsecured amount in excess of approximately $3 million.

Reserves

The applicable insurance laws under which the Company operates require that reserves be maintained for the payment of
losses and loss adjustment expenses with respect to both reported and IBNR losses under its insurance policies. IBNR losses
are those losses, based upon historical experience and other relevant data, that the Company estimates will be reported or
ultimately develop under policies issued by the Company. Case loss reserves are determined by evaluating reported claims on
the basis of the type of loss involved, knowledge of the circumstances surrounding the claim, and the policy provisions relating
to the type of loss. IBNR losses are estimated on the basis of statistical information with respect to the probable number and
nature of losses which have notyet been reported. The establishment of reserves (and the increase in reserves) acts to reduce
income while the reduction of reserves increases income.




The loss settlement period for payment of insurance claims may be many years and during this period it often becomes
necessary to adjust the estimate of liability on a claim either upward or downward. Among the classes of marine, aircraft and

‘non-marine liability insurance written by the Company are liability classes which historically have had longer periods of time

between occurrence of an insurable event, reporting of the claim to the Company and final settlement. In such cases, the
Company is forced to estimate reserves with the possibility of making several adjustments to reserves during this time period.
Other classes of insurance, such as property and claims-made non-marine liability classes, historically have had shorter
periods of time between occurrence of an insurable event, reporting of the claim to the Company and final settlement. The
reserves with respect to such classes are iess likely to be readjusted.

The Company, from time to time, has increased its participation in the pools. The effect of each such increase is prospective
in nature and does not affect the loss reserves herein set forth for the years prior to the effective date of any such change in
participation percentage.

The Company participated in both the issuance of umbrelia casualty insurance for various Fortune 1000 companies and the
issuance of ocean marine liability insurance for various oil companies during the period from 1978 to 1984. Depending on the
calendar year, the insurance pools’ maximum net retained liability per occurrence after applicable reinsurance ranged from
$250,000 to $1,000,000. The Company's effective pool participation on such risks varied from 1 1%in 1978 t0 59%in 1984.
Subsequent to this period, the pools substantially reduced their umbrella writings and coverage was provided to smaller
insureds. Ocean marine and non-marine policies issued during the past three years contain some coverage for environmental
risks. At December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company’s gross, ceded and net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves for all
Asbestos/Environmental policies amounted to $28 million, $16.5 million and $1 1.5 million, and $33.2 million, $20.8 million
and $12.4 million, respectively. As of December 31,2001, the Company had approximately 300 policies under which there
was at least one claim relating to Asbestos/Environmental exposures. The Company believes that the uncertainty surrounding
Asbestos/Environmental exposures, including issues as to insureds’ liabilities, ascertzinment of loss date, dafinitions of occur-
rence, scope of coverage, policy limits and application and interpretation of policy terms, including exclusions, renders it
difficult to determine the ultimate loss for Asbestos/Environmental related claims. Given the uncertainty in this area, losses
from Asbestos/Environmental related claims may develop adversely. However, the Company believes that, in aggregate, the
net unpaid loss and loss adjustment expense reserves as of December 31, 2001, are adequate and that the ultimate resolution
of the Asbestos/Environmental claims will not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position.

The following table sets forth NYMAGIC’s net loss and loss adjustment expense experience for Asbestos/Environmental
policies for each of the past three years:

2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Asbestos/Envirenmental
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses
(induding IBNR) at beginning of period ..........ceccceriverrrrenrinnnes $12,357 $ 9,697 $9.017
Incurred osses and loss adjustment eXpenses .........cicrerevnen, 567 3,406 1,489
PAYIMENTS <.ttt sttt eses e e s e s nenees (1.432) (746) (809)

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses
(including IBNR) at end of period..........ccveveumeeeircerenrencreronene $11,492 $12,357 $9,697

The netloss and loss adjustment expense payments related to the Company’s Asbestos/Environmental claims have not been
material in relation to the Company’s total losses and loss adjustment expense payments as shown in the table below:

2001 2000 1999

(In thousands)

Total loss and loss adjustment expense
payments for the year ended December 31, $76,557 $65,121 $53,379

Asbestos/Environmental loss and loss adjustment expense :
payments for the year ended December 31, $ 1432 $ 746 $ 809




The insurance pools have written coverage for products liability as part of its other liability insurance policies issued since
1985. The insurance pools’ maximum loss per risk is generally limited to $1,000,000 and the Company’s participation
percentage ranges from 59% to 100% based upon policy year. The Company believes that the Company’s reserves with
respect to such policies are adequate to cover the ultimate resolution of all such products liability claims.

The following table shows changes in the Company’s reserves in subsequent years from prior years’ reserves. Each year the
Company’s estimated reserves increase or decrease as more information becomes known about the frequency and severity of
losses for past years. As indicated in the chart, a “redundancy” means the original estimate of the Company’s consolidated
liability was higher than the current estimate; while a “deficiency” means that the original estimate was lower than the current
estimate.

The first line of the table presents, for each of the last ten years, the estimated liability for net unpaid losses and loss
adjustment expenses at the end of the year, including IBNR losses. The estimated liability for net unpaid losses and loss
adjustment expenses is determined at the end of each calendar year. Below this first line, the first section of the table shows,
by year, the cumulative amounts of net loss and loss adjustment (e.g. net liability) expenses paid as of the end of each succeeding
year, expressed as a percentage of the estimated liability for such amounts.

The second section sets forth the re-estimates in later years of netincurred losses, including net payments, as a percentage
of the estimated liability for net unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses for the years indicated. Percentages less than
100% represent a redundancy while percentages greater than 100% represent a deficiency. The net cumulative redundancy
(deficiency) represents, as of December 31,2001, the aggregate change in the estimates over all prior years. The changes in
re-estimates have been reflected in results from operations over the periods shown.

The third section sets forth the cumulative redundancy (deficiency) of unpaid losses and ioss adjustment expenses on a gross
basis which represents the aggregate change in the estimates of such losses over all prior years starting with the 1993
calendar year and subsequent.

The Company makes no specific provision for inflation in connection with reserve estimates, but does each year consider
the adjustment of outstanding case reserves, historical loss payments and current inflationary indices in determining the
adequacy of the overall loss reserve.




Year Ended December 31,
1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001

(Dollars in thousands)

Estimated Liability for Net Unpaid
Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses: $170,744 $203,735 $208,366 $212,377 $229916 $227,370 $222,335 $213,589 $196,865 $199,685 $210,953

Cumulative Amount of Net Liability Paid as a Percentage of Estimate through:

I Year Later 1996 209 229 209 2096 17% 19% 2096 24% 28%

2 Years Later 379% 379% 379 349 3296 30% 329 359 39%

3 Years Later 529 48%6 4996 44%6 4296 42% 439 43%

4 Years Later 619% 58% 5796 539 519 5196 49%

5 Years Later 6996 64%6 6496 629 589 5696

6 Years Later 749 7096 719 68%6 629%

7 Years Later 7896 76% 769 72%

8 Years Later 849% 8096 77%

9 Years Later 879 819

10 Years Later 8896

Net Liability Re-estimated induding Cumulative Net Paid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses as a Percentage of Estimate as of:

I Year Later 99% 99% 999% 97% 9496 90%6 91%% 9496 9696 10596 ¥
2 Years Later 99% 97%6 9696 95% 87% 879% 87% 87% 949

3 Years Later 99% 959 9596 919 86%6 85%6 83% 8496

4 Years Later 97% 95% 9396 91% 8696 83% 8196

5 Years Later 98% 9496 9496 929 85%6 82%

6 Years Later 9696 95%6 95% 93% 8496

7 Years Later 979 9696 959% 92%

8 Years Later 999 96% 9496

9 Years Later 999 95%

10 Years Later 9836

Net Cumulative Redundancy (Deficiency) 3,345 9,540 11,580 17,935 36,537 41,248 42,298 33,667 12,036 (9.604)

Gross Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses $407,321  $435072  $417,795  $411,837 $388,402 $401,584  $425469 $411,267 $534,189
Reinsurance Recoverable on Unpaid Losses and

Loss Adjustment Expenses 198,955 222,695 187,879 184,467 166,067 187,995 228,604 211,582 323,236
Reserve Re-estimated Gross 363,915 399,826 379,301 345,695 360,142 404,197 418,902 422,214

Reserve Re-estimated Reinsurance Recoverable 167,129 205,384 185,922 159,573 180,105 224,275 234,073 212,925

Gross Cumulative Redundancy (Deficiency) 43,406 35,246 38,494 66,142 28,260 (2,613) 6,567 (10,947)
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the consolidated liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses at the
beginning and end of 2001, 2000 and 1999:

Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

(In thousands)

Net liability for losses and loss adjustment

expenses at beginning Of Year ............cowwrevrcrermserrenermnenerenens $199,685 $196,865 $213,589

Provision for losses and loss adjustment

expenses OCCUITING iN CUFFENT YA .......c.ccovvvcviremnmniiisisisssnnnenenes 78,221 76,425 48,838
Increase (decrease) in estimated losses and loss

adjustment expenses for claims occurring in prior years (" ..... 9,604 (8.484) (12,183)
Deferred income-loss portfolio assumption @ .........ccccvvineeeeee 76 122 198
Net losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred .........ccoouveee. 87,901 68,063 36,853
Less:

Net loss and loss adjustment expense payments
for claims occurring during:

CUMTENTYBAT ..vvisiieneririereeeeeesrerserereeseesenteseresssenenestssesssssnsenes 20,354 17,530 11,517
PriOr YEAIS ..vveveveeiiirirectetete ettt seseesetsaene e renenas 56,203 47,591 41,862
76,557 65,121 53,379
Add:
Deferred income-loss portfolio assumption @ ............ccoeveveeee (76) (122) (198)
Net liability for losses and loss adjustment
EXPENSES AL YA BN ....vvenreierirenreeeerrereererereese ettt beeenes 210,953 199,685 196,865
Ceded unpaid lossas and loss adjustment expenses atyearend ...... 323,236 211,582 228,604
Gross unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses atyear end ....... $534,189 $411,267 $425,469

(1) The adjustment to the consolidated liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses for losses occurring in prior years
reflects the net effect of the resolution of losses for other than full reserve value and subsequent readjustments of loss
values. The increase in 2001 reflects provisions made for insolvent or financially impaired reinsurers and adverse devel-
opment from MMO London due to higher than expected claim frequency. The amount was partially offset by favorable
development in the ocean marine line of business in the domestic insurance companies. The decrease in 2000 and 1999
in estimated losses is attributable to the ocean marine and aircraft lines of business in the domestic insurance companies
as a result of favorable payout trends due, in part, to lower retention levels per loss.

(2) Deferred income-loss portfolio assumption represents the difference between cash received and unpaid loss reserves
assumed as a result of the assumption of net pool obligations from two former pool members which was initially
capitalized and is being amortized over the payout period of the related losses.

The principal differences between the consolidated liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses as reported in
the Annual Statement filed with state insurance departments in accordance with statutory accounting principles and the
liability based on generally accepted accounting principles shown in the above tables are due to the assumption of loss
reserves arising from former participants in the MMO insurance pools, the Company’s reserves for MMO London, reserves
for uncoilectible reinsurance and unpaid unallocated loss adjustment expenses based upon imanagement commissions payable
to the Managers which are eliminated on a consolidated basis. The [oss reserves shown in the above tables reflectin each year
salvage and subrogation accruals of approximately | % to 6%. The estimated accrual for salvage and subrogation is based on
the line of business and historical salvage and subrogation recovery data. In neither statutory nor generally accepted account-
ing principles are loss and loss adjustment expense reserves discounted to present value.




The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the consolidated net liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses
based on statutory accounting principles for the doimestic insurance companies to the consolidated amounts based on
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") as of December 31,2001, 2000 and 1999:

Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

(In thousands)

Liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses

reported based on statutory accounting principles ................. $156,203 $151,752 $170,664
Liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses assumed
from two former pool Members .........c.ccevvceerneennneceererenens 5,360 5,508 4911

(excludes $2,402, $2,448 and $3,684 at December 31,2001,
2000 and 1999, accounted for in the statutory liability for
fosses and loss adjustment expenses)

MMO LoNdON .ceeiiiirerecciecererice e 36,823 39,789 18,401
OHhEE NBL ..ttt et ene 12,567 2,636 2,889
Net liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses

reported based on GAAP ... 210,953 199,685 196,865
Ceded liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses ...... 323,236 211,582 228,604
Gross liability for unpaid iosses and loss adjustment expenses ........ $534,189 $411,267 $425,469
Regulation

The Company’s domestic insurance companies are regulated by the insurance regulatory agencies of the states in which
they are authorized to do business. New York Marine is licensed to engage in the insurance business in all states.

Gotham is permitted to write excess and surplus lines insurance on a nonadmitted basis in all of the states except Arkansas,
Massachusetts, Nevada, New Jersey, New Hampshire and Vermont. Gotham is licensed to engage in the insurance business in
the state of New York and, as such, cannot write excess and surplus business in that state.

Many aspects of the Company’s insurance business are subject to regulation. For example, minimum capitalization must be
maintained; certain forms of policies must be approved before they may be offered; reserves must be established in relation
to the amounts of premiums earnied and losses incurred; and, in some cases, schedules of premium rates must be approved.

The domestic insurance company subsidiaries also file statutory financial statements with each state in the format specified
by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (the “NAIC”). The NAIC provides accounting guidelines for compa-
nies to file statutory financial statemenits and provides minimum solvency standards for all companies in the form of risk-based
capital requirements. The policyholders’ surplus (the statutory equivalent of net worth) of each of the domestic insurance
companies is above the minimum amount required by the NAIC.

The NAIC’s project to codify statutory accounting principles was approved by the NAIC in 1998. The purpose of codifica-
tion was to provide a comprehensive basis of accounting for reporting to state insurance departments. The approval of
codified accounting rules included a provision for the state insurance commissioners to modify such accounting rules by
practices prescribed or permitted for insurers in their state. The domestic insurance companies are domiciled in New York
State, which adopted certain prescribed accounting practices that differ from those approved by the NAIC. Codification
became effective on January 1, 2001 and did not have amaterial effect on the domestic insuranca companies’ policyholders’
surplus.

New York Marine and Gotham are subject to examination by the Insurance Department of the State of New York. The
insurance companies’ most recent examination was for the year ended December 31, 2000. There were no significant
adjustments which resulted from that examination.

MMO London operates in a highly regulated environment within the overall Lioyd's market. Lloyd’s maintains regulatory
departments that review the management and operation of all agencies and syndicates to ensure that business is conducted in
accordance with Lloyd’s standards. Syndicates are required to maintain trust funds for insurance transactions with strict




guidelines on withdrawals from such funds. Annual solvency tests are conducted whereby syndicates must maintain minimum
capital requirements in accordance with ratios prescribed by Lloyd’s.

The following table shows, for the periods indicated, the Company’s consolidated domestic insurance companies’
statutory ratios of net premiums written (gross premiums less premiums ceded) to policyholders’ surplus:

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(Dollars in thousands)
Net premiums written $78,438 $61,584 $38,741 $45,333 $62,221
Policyholders'surplus 152,061 184,688 200,899 196,745 181,844
Ratio S2to 33tol A9to | 23to | 34to |

While there are no statutory requirements applicable to the Company which establish permissible premium to surplus
ratios, guidelines established by the NAIC provide that the statutory net premiums written to surplus ratio should be no
greater than 3 to |. The Company is well within those guidelines.

NYMAGIC's principal source of income is dividends from its subsidiaries, which is used for payment of operating expenses,
including interest expense, loan repayments and payment of dividends to NYMAGIC’s shareholders. The maximum amount of
dividends that may be paid to NYMAGIC by the domestic insurance company subsidiaries is limited to the lesser of 10% of
statutory surplus or 100% of netinvestment income, as defined under New York Insurance Law. The maximum amount which
could be paid to the Company out of the domestic insurance companies’ surplus was approximately $15,000,000 as of
December 31,2001. Dividends can be paid from Syndicate 1265 to the extent solvency margins are maintained and after the
closing of an underwriting year, which occurs after thirty-six months. The Company does not expect to receive a dividend
from the closing of any underwriting years.

Insurance companies are being regulated more strictly by the various states in recent years. Many states have also increased
regulation of surplus lines insurance thereby requiring stricter standards for authorization. Several states have established
guaranty funds which serve to provide the insured with payments due under policies issued by insurance companies that have
become insolvent. Insurance companies that are authorized to write in states are assessed a fee, normally based on direct
writings in a particular state, to cover any payments made or to be made by guaranty funds. New York Marine and Gotham are
subject to such assessments in the various states.

Subsidiaries

NYMAGIC’s largestinsurance company subsidiary is New York Marine which was formed in 1972. NYMAGIC was formed
in 1989 to serve as a holding company for the subsidiary insurance companies. NYMAGIC’s other domestic insurance
company subsidiary, Gotham, was organized in 1986 as ameans of expanding into the excess and surplus lines marketplace.
New York Marine and Gotham entered into a Reinsurance Agreement, effective January |, 1987, under terms of which
Gotham cedes 100% of its gross direct business to New York Marine and assumes {5% of New York Marine’s total retained
business, beginning with the 1987 policy year. Accordingly, for policy year 1987 and subsequent, Gotham’s underwriting
statistics are similar to New York Marine’s. As of December 31,2001, 75% and 25% of Gotham’s common stock is owned
by New York Marine and NYMAGIC, respectively.

Gotham does not assume or cede business to or from other insurance companies. As of December 31,2001, New York
Marine had aggregate receivables due from Gotham of approximately $26 million or 19% of New York Marine’s statutory
surplus. Gotham had aggregate reinsurance receivables due from New York Marine, as of December 31,2001, of approxi-
mately $2 | million or 39% of Gotham's policyholders’ surplus.

MMO was acquired in 199 | and was formed in 1964 to underwrite a book of ocean marine insurance. MMQO's activities
expanded over the years and it now underwrites a book of ocean marine, inland marine, aircraft and other liability insurance.

Midwest was acquired in 1991 and was formed in 1978 to underwrite a varied book of business located in the Midwest
region.

PMMO was acquired in 1991 and was formed in 1975 to underwrite a varied book of business in the West Coast region.

MMO UK was formed in 1997 as a Lloyd’s limited liability corporate capital vehicle.




Competition

The insurance industry is highly competitive and the companies, both domestic and foreign, against which the Company
competes are often larger with greater capital resources than the Company and the pools. The principal methods of compe-
tition are pricing and responsiveness to the individual insured’s coverage requirements.

The Company believes it can successfully compete against other companies in the insurance market due to its philosophy
of underwriting quality insurance, its reputation as a conservative well-capitalized insurer and its willingness to forego unprof-
itable business.

Employees

The Company currenty employs approximately 99 persons, of whom |6 are insurance underwriters.

item 2. Properties

The Company does not own, directly or indirectly, any real estate. The Company leases office space for day to day
operations in the following cities:

New York - 37,000 square feet
Chicago - 3,500 square feet
San Francisco - 2,000 square feet

The Company’s principal executive offices are approximately 37,000 sq. ft. in size and are located in New York City. The
lease for the Company’s principal executive offices expires December 30, 2003. The minimum annual rentunder the lease is
$1,184,000 until the expiration of the lease. The lease included an initial cash payment by the lessor to the Company of
$1,853,000, the benefit of which was deferred and is being amortized over the lease term.

item 3. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not currently involved in any legal proceedings other than litigation all of which, collectively, is not
expected to have a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition or results of operations of the Company.

item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

The Company did not submit any matters to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2001.
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ftem 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Stock and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company's common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE Symbol: NYM). The following table sets
forth high and low closing prices for the periods indicated as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape.

2001 2000
High Low High Low
FIrST QUAITEN «ooveivieeecceire ettt sr st s es s s b s e sasssae e enens $19.00 $17.60 $14.38 $12.38
SeCONd QUAITET ...cceiiiiereeeeeecrietee et crr e s er s s err e be s be e ess e seenns 22.27 18.15 15.38 13.13
Third QUATET .....cceiieeccnire ettt et s 20.79 15.85 15.56 13.00
Fourth QUArter. ......c.coeencrieceeeieer e nesesese e seaseeens 18.99 15.60 19.19 15.00

As of March |, 2002, there were 81 shareholders of record. However, management believes there are approximately 973

beneficial owners of NYMAGIC's common stock.

Dividend Policy

A cash dividend of ten (10) cents per share was declared and paid to shareholders of record in March, June and September
of 2001. A cash dividend of ten (10) cents per share was declared and paid to shareholders of record in March, June,
September, and December of 2000. The Company did not declare a dividend in December of 2001. The Company may
resume declari’ng dividends; howaver, it cannot be determined currently when future dividends will be declared. For a
description of restrictions on the ability of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries to transfer funds to the Company in the form
of dividends, see “Business - Regulation” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and

Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources”.

ftem 6. Selected Financizal Data

OPERATING DATA Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:

Net premiums €arnad ........cccvveveverrrrereserseeereineseene $ 84633 $ 75448  $56,155 $ 76,023 $ 87,537
Net investmentinComMEe. .......coovvvveiereieeeeeciieer s, 17,388 18,076 18,642 20,803 21,325
CommisSion INCOME ....ovvveeeveeererevirierveesseeesvcorseesanns 3,312 903 1,956 591 1,439
Realized investment gains .........cccocevvevninnnnnnine, 2,874 5,247 12,504 8,615 10,425
Other iNCOME. covvvvirieceeeiriisterereesreecreeiere b s ere e 285 1,059 237 396 293
Total FEVENUES ...occovvvieieeeveerieece e esvesse s $108,492 $100,733 $89,494 $106,428 $121,019
Expenses:
Netlosses and loss adjustment

@XPeNSES INCUITE ....cvueuvirrieeneieinreercersseaeseeneenans $ 87901 $ 68,063 $36853 $ 50512 $ 50,768
Policy acquisition @Xpenses ..........ccceevererereerenninenns 16,083 18,178 11,077 10,107 16,583
General and administrative expenses ...........c..c.... 16,952 19,439 19,327 21,531 16,763
INEreSt EXPENSE ....coveirerrereeesierereeesresiereseeaecenereene 395 712 1,058 1,374 1,450
Total eXPenses .........ccvveecncrnivcnnnreneneans $120,331 $106,392 $68,3i15 $83,524 $85,564




Selected Financial Data {continued) Year Ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In thousands, except per share data)

Income (loss) before income taxes ...........coveverene (12,839) (5,659) 21,179 22,904 35,455
Income taxes

CUMTENT .ottt se e e 798 1,276 3,189 5,250 8,962

Deferred ...ccvvrereverreireriereee et seeresesneetraens (498) (1,433) 1,577 (869) 125
Total INCOME LAXES .oovevererrreeierrerseeeeestreeseseeerersens 300 (157) 4,766 4,381 9,087
Net income (10S8) ...c.ooveverinvrcrinniereiniseinins $(13,139)  $(5,502) $16,403 $08,523 $26,368

BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:

Weighted average shares outstanding .................. 9,232 9,244 9,687 9,679 9,849
Basic earnings (loss) pershare .....c.ocvvevceeenne $(1.42) $(.60) $1.69 $1.91 $2.68

DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE:

Weighted average shares outstanding ..........co...... 9,232 9,244 9,687 9,705 2,872
Diluted earnings (loss) per share. ...........c.ceceeueenen. $(1.42) $(.60) $1.69 $1.91 $2.67
Dividends declared per share ........c.ccocevevevrniecs $ .30 $ 40 $ 40 $ 40 $ 40
BALANCE SHEET DATA December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
(In thousands)

TOLal IRVESNENLS. «.rrvvesreeesens e eeeseeeeesesseeeeessenns $366,167  $371,291  $396,710 $443,022 $438,591
TOLal ASSELS c.voveiiieeeeee ettt s 856,997 720,329 764,304 730,320 707,203
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses ........ 534,189 411,267 425,469 401,584 388,402
Notes payable .....cccocoreieinireenncenrrerererecreeanns 7811 7,458 12,458 17,458 22,458
Total shareholders' @qUIty ........cccveererereerurerennnnenn. $199,272  $216,290 $231,142 $228,180 $206,519

For a description of factors that materially affect the comparability of the information reflected in the Selected Financial
Data, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”.

ltem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations

Results of Operations

The Company’s resulis of operations are derived from its two main segments which consist of the domestic insurance
companies/agencies and MMO London.The Company’s domestic insurance companies participate in pools of insurance
covering ocean marine, inland marine, aircraft and non-marine liability insurance managed by MMO and affiliates. Effective
January I, 1997 and subsequent, the Company’s participation in the pools increased to 100%. MMO London wrote a book
of ocean marine insurance through its participation in Syndicate 1265 and a book of assumed property and aircraft reinsur-
ance through its participation in Syndicate 2010. In 2002, MMO UK will not be providing capacity to any Lloyd’s syndicate.

The Company records premiums written in the year policies are issued and earns such premiums written on a monthly pro
rata basis over the terms of the respective policies. The following tables present the Company’s premiums written and
premiums earned on a net basis after ceded reinsurance for each of the past three years.

20




NYMAGIC Net Premiums Written by

Line of Business Year Ended December 31,
2001 2030 1999
(Dollars in thousands)
Ocean Maring (&) «.....ccvevreeeserenrereiennnns $49,128 55% $60,100 67% $48,564 87%
Inland Maring. .......cocoevevvrervervesinenennnens 656 1% 517 1% 153 —
AITCraft ..o e 26,556 30% 25,060 28% 5,319 9%
Other liability .....cvoeeeeerirrecceneireeccn. 4,661 5% 3,239 4% 2,064 4%
Other (b) oo 8,691 9% 322 — 6 —
Total ..ooveeevneen. eererrreaea et re et rans $89,692 100% $89,238 100% $56,106 100%

NYMAGIC Net Premiums Earned by

Line of Business Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)
Ocean Maring (€) ....covereevereererererernnns $47,707 56% $58,670 78% $48,159 86%
Inland Maring. ..o 477 1% 381 1% 182 —
AIrcraft. «...ocooeeeeiiiiee e 28,318 34% 12,823 17% 5,310 9%
Other liability .....ccocorrevcvenererererrcnee 2,770 3% 3,228 4%. 2,529 5%
Other (d) ....ocvovrverenriverrerereceernnnenans .5,361 6% 346 —_ (25) —
TOLAL e e $84,633 100% $75,448 100% $56,155 100%

(@) [ncludes net premiums written from MMO London of $3,438, $27,654 and $17,365 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
(b) Includes net premiums written from MMO London of $7,816 for 2001.

(e) Includes net premiums earned from MMO London of $9,197, $26,399 and $13,6 14 for 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.
(d) Includes net premiums earned from MMO London of $4,939 for 2001.

Unlike many types of property and casualty insurance, ocean marine, inland marine, aircraft and other liability premium
rates are not strictly regulated by governmental authorities. Consequently, the Company is able to adjust premium rates
quickly in response to competition, varying degrees of risk and other factors. In addition, the Company, by virtue of its
underwriting flexibility, is able to emphasize specific lines of business in response to advantageous premium rates and the
anticipation of positive underwriting results. However, the insurance industry is highly competitive and the companies against
which the Company competes may seek to limit any market premium rate increases.

The Company’s general and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation expense, employee benefits
and rental expense for office facilities. The Company’s policy acquisition costs include both brokerage commissions and
premium taxes both of which are primarily based on a percentage of premiums written. Such costs have generally changed in
proportion to changes in premium volume. Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred in connection with insurance claims
in any particular year depend upon a variety of factors including the rate of inflation, accident or claim frequency, the
occurrence of natural catastrophes and the number of policies written.

The Company estimates reserves each year based upon, and in conformity with, the factors discussed under “Business -
Reserves”. Changes in estimates of reserves are reflected in operating results in the year in which the change occurs.

2001 as Compared to 2000

The Company reported netlosses of $13.1 million, or $1.42 per diluted share, and net losses of $5.5 million, or $.60 per
diluted share, for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The results from operations were adversely
affected by net losses from MMO London of $9.9 million, or $1.07 per diluted share and $15.4 million or $1.66 per diluted
share for the years ended December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively. Results for the year ended December 31,2001 include
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after-tax losses of approximately $9.0 million, or $.98 per diluted share, resulting from the September |1, 2001 terrorist
attacks on the World Trade Center, the Pentagon and the hijacked airliner which crashed in Pennsylvania (collectively
hereinafter referred to as the “WTC attack”).

The Company reported operating iosses, which excludes the effects of realized investment gains or losses after taxes, of
$15.0 million, or $1.63 per diluted share, and operating losses of $8.9 million, or $.96 per diluted share, for the years ended
December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively.

Net premiums earned grew by approximately 12% for the year ended December 31,2001, when compared to the same
period of the prior year. Net premiums earned for the year ended December 31, 200 | were adversely affected by reinstate-
ment reinsurance premiums of approximately $5.0 million as a result of losses sustained from the WTC attack.

The domestic insurance companies/agencies segment reported a 44% increase in net premiums earned in 2001. Net
premiums earned by line of business within this segment are listed as follows:

QOcean marine - net premiums earned and net premiums written in this line grew by 19% and 4 1%, respectively, in 2001 and
reflect firmer marine rates and additional production mainly in the rig, hull and cargo classes. Net premiums in the ocean
marine class are expected to rise further in 2002 as premium rates remain firm.

Inland marine - net premiums earned in the inland marine line rose in 2001 due to additional premium volume through
expansion opportunities and firmer pricing. The increase in premium volume was achieved by writing anew program insuring
excess and surplus lines property risks.

Aircraft - net premiums earned in the aircraft line increased in 2001 primarily due to higher net retention levels and rate
increases; however, they were offset by ceded reinstatement premiums incurired of $5.0 million from the WTC attack. The
increase in net premiums earned was achieved despite reductions in policy count and more expensive reinsurance costs
resuiting from a tighter reinsurance market. Part of this increase was attributable to premium surcharges enacted after the
WTC attack. The Company recorded approximately $12 million in net premiums written from premium surcharges, of
which $6.5 miliion was earned, in 2001. These premium surcharges were enacted by the Federal Government and no
assurance can be given as to the continuance or renewal of such premium in the future. In addition, net premiums written are
expected to decline in 2002 in the aircraft line as the Company is not planning to write new or renewal aircraft policies on a
direct basis subsequent to March 31, 2002.

Other liability - net premiums earned in the other liability line declined in 200 | due to the non-renewal of assumed auto
liability business in 200 1. However, net premiums written increased primarily due to additional premium volume through
expansion opportunities and firmer pricing. Contributing to the growth in 2001 was approximately $700,000 in net
premiums written from policies covering errors and omissions/professional liability risks.

Premiums earned from MMO London decreased in 200 | by 46%. Excluding a prior year transaction, which involved a one-
time assumption of ocean marine and casualty premiums, net premiums earned in MMO London during 2001 would have
decreased by 25% which reflected a reduction in capacity for premium writings at Lloyd’s. Current year net premiums
written and earned include approximately $7.8 million and $4.9 million, respectively, resulting from the Company’s interest
in Lloyd’s Syndicate 2010 which, effective January |, 2001, primarily wrote assumed reinsurance of aircraft and property
risks. Premiums earned are expected to further decrease in MMO London in 2002 as the Company will not be providing
capacity (the ability to write premiums) to any Lloyd’s syndicate for the 2002 underwriting year.

Netlosses and loss adjustment expenses incurred as a percentage of net premiums earned (the “loss ratio”) was 103.9% for
the year ended December 31, 2001 as compared to 90.2% for the prior year. Net losses and loss adjustment expenses
incurred were $87.9 million and $68. | million for the years ended December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively. The domestic
insurance companies/agencies reported higher losses in 2001 as a result of larger severity losses arising from higher net
retention levels per loss in the aircraft line of business including WTC attack losses of approximately $6.6 million. The ultimate
net liability resulting from the WTC attack may change from the amount provided currently depending upon revisions in gross
loss estimates and the interpretation as to the number of occurrences as defined in the aircraft ceded reinsurance treaties.
In addition, 200 reflected charges for insolvent or financially impaired reinsurers of $10.8 million as compared to $ 1.0 million
in 2000.

Net losses and losses adjustment expenses incurred from MMO London were $18.5 million (130.8% loss ratio) and
$36.3 million (139.5% loss ratio) for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. WTC attack losses of
approximately $1.4 million also arose from MMO London operations. The decline in losses incurred in 2001 is consistent with
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the decline in premiums in MMO London from the prior year.

Policy acquisition costs as a percentage of net premiums earned was 19.0% for the year ended December 31,2001 as
compared with 24.|% for the same period in 2000. The decrease was attributable to a lower aircraft expense ratio as much
of the premium surcharges enacted by the Federal Government were recorded with a nominal processing charge. The prior
year's ratio also reflected a higher ratio for MMO London resulting from the recognition of larger premium deficiencies.

Net investment income was down 4% for year ended December 31,2001 when compared to the same period of the prior
year. The decrease generally reflects a lower interest rate environment and a reduction in overall invested assets during the
year.

Realized investment gains were $2.9 million and $5.2 million for the years ended December 31,2001 and 2000, respec-
tively. The current year's amount reflects larger write-downs from other than temporary dedlines in the fair value of equity
securities. The prior year’s amount reflects larger gains from the sale of equity securities.

Commission income rose to $3.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 from approximately $900,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2000. The increase in the current year largely reflects larger profit commissions based upon the ceded
results of reinsurance treaties.

Other income decreased in the current year as the prior year’s amount reflects a gain of $700,000 resulting from the sale
of the Company’s Lloyd’s agency.

General and administrative expenses decreased by 13% for the year ended December 31, 200] when compared to the
same period of the prior year of 2000. The decrease is attributable to lower operating expenses in the current year derived
from MMO London.

Interest expense decreased to $395,000 for the year ended December 31,2001 from $712,000 for the same period of the
prior year as a result of a decrease in average loan principal outstanding throughout the year.

Total income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 inctude increases of $5.2 million and $3.7 million,
respectively, in the valuation allowance for deferred income taxes with respect to tax loss carryforwards.

Other liabilities as of December 31, 2001 increased to $23.2 million from $9.8 million as of the prior year end as a result
of increases in funds held from reinsurers in order to collateralize their obligations to the Company as required by provisions
of various reinsurance treaties. Funds obtained from reinsurers are invested in a fiduciary manner for the benefit of the
Company in the insurance pool managed by MMO. .

Premiums and other receivables increased to $74.9 million as of December 31, 2001 from $54.0 million as of the prior
year. Theincrease was attributable to larger amounts due from the pool managed by MMO as a result of larger investment
balances held by the pool.

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses and reinsurance receivables as of December 31, 2001 increased to $534.2
million and $361.7 million, respectively, primarily as a result of gross losses of $154.9 million and reinsurance receivables of
$146.9 million, respectively, incurred from the WTC attack.

Accumulated other comprehensive income decreased to $7.9 million as of December 31,2001 from $10.9 million as of
December 31, 2000. The change principally reflects decreases in the fair value of equity securities brought about by declines
in the U.S. stock markets during 2001 . Partially offsetting this decrease was the favorable impact of lower interest rates on the

-fair value of fixed maturities.

2000 as Compared to 1999

The Company reported a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2000 of $5.5 million, or $.60 per diluted share as
compared with netincome of $16.4 million, or $1.69 per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, {999.

The Company reported an operating loss, which excludes the effects of realized investment gains after taxes, for the year
ended December 31,2000, of $8.9 million or $.96 per diluted share compared with operating income of $8.3 million, or $.86
per diluted share, for the year ended December 31, 1999. The decline in operating income in 2000 principally reflects the
underwriting losses attributable to MMO London including costs associated with managing the unpaid losses of Syndicate
1265 which ceased underwriting in the third quarter of 2000. Results from operations were reduced by such losses for the
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year ended December 31,2000 by $1.67 per diluted share. This compares with losses of $.10 per diluted share from MMO
London in the prior year. The exchange of the Company’s Lloyd’s agency for a minority interest in Cathedral Capital PLC, in
the fourth quarter of 2000, resulted in an after tax gain of approximately $450,000 or $.05 per diluted share.

Net premiums earned increased by 34% for the year ended December 31, 2000 when compared to the prior year. The
increase in 2000 is largely attributable to premiums emanating from the participation in Syndicate 1265 through MMO
London. Net premiums earned from MMO London grew to $26.4 million in 2000 as compared to $13.6 million in 1999 and
much of the increase is attributable to a transaction involving a one-time assumption of approximately $7.4 million of ocean
marine and casualty premiums. The Company placed Syndicate 1265 into run-off in the third quarter of 2000.

Net premiums earned from domestic insurance companies increased by 15% in 2000 due mainly to growth in the aircraft
line of business. Aircraft net premiums earned grew 142% for the year as a result of the effect of higher ratention levels in 2000
due to the non-renewal of a reinsurance treaty that ceded 75% of gross premiums written in 1999. Rate increases on aircraft
policies further contributed to the growth in 2000 premiums earned. However, the increase in aircraft net premiums written
was offset by a reduction in policy count and a reduction in participation percentage on policies.

Ocean marine premiums earned, derived from the domestic insurance companies, decreased 7% in 2000 when compared
to 1999. However, net writings increased 4% in 2000 when compared to the prior year due, in large part, to increasing
marine rates in 2000. The level of premium rates attained in 2000 enabled the Company to write additional policies
particularly in the hull and cargo marine classes.

Orher lizbility premiums earned increased 28% in 2000. The growth in premiums is attributable to writing a new class of
assumed auto liability business in 2000.

Inland marine premiums increased mainly due to increased policy counts in 2000.

The loss ratio was 90.2% for the year ended December 31, 2000 as compared to 65.6% for the prior year. The increase
resulted from a significant frequency of larger than anticipated losses derived from the underwriting operations of MMO
London, which resuited in a loss ratio of 137.4% for year ended December 31, 2000. The loss ratio from the domestic
insurance companies increased in 2000 to 64.8% from 61.7% in the prior year primarily due to increases in both the
frequency and severity of losses in the aircraft line of business. The Company’s domestic insurance companies recorded
favorable net loss experience in the ocean marine line comparable to the prior year period.

Policy acquisition expenses as a percentage of net premiums earned for the year ended December 31, 2000 was 24.1% as
compared with 19.7% for the same period in 1999. The increase in the ratio in 2000 is primarily attributable to higher
acquisition costs on UK derived business and larger acquisition expenses in the aircraftline in 2000 which do not reflect the
benefit of ceding commissions on ceded reinsurance business incepting in 2000.

Net investment income for the year ended December 31, 2000 decreased by 3% from the level of net investment income
achieved in 1999. The decline was principally caused by a reduction in invested assets offset by higher yields on investments
due to a higher interest rate environment in 2000 and increased investments in taxable securities.

General and administrative expenses were flatin 2000 when compared to the prior year. The prior year’s amounts included
larger expenses incurred in connection with employee benefit plans; however, the current year expenses reflecta$ 1.1 million
litigation settdlement.

Realized investment gains were $5.2 million and $12.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respec-
tively, and each resulted mainly from the sale of appreciated equity securities.

Interest expense decreased to $712,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000 from $1,058,000 for the prior year
primarily as a result of a decrease in foan principal outstanding.

Commission income was approximately $200,000 for the year ended December 31, 2000 as compared to $2.0 million in
the prior year. 1999 reflected larger reinsurance contingent commissions derived from the profitability of certain ceded
reinsurance agreements in the aircraft and ocean marine lines.

Other income increased substantially for the year ended December 3 1, 2000 as compared to the prior year. The increase
was attributable to the exchange of the Company’s Lloyd’s agency for a minority interest in Cathedrai Capital PLC which
resulted in a pre-tax gain of approximately $700,000.
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Lﬁqwﬁdﬁﬁy and Capital Resources

The Company monitors cash and short-term investments in order to have an adequate level of funds available to satisfy
claims and expenses as they become due. As of December 31, 2001, the Company’s assets included approximately $68
million in cash and short-term investments. The primary sources of the Company’s liquidity are funds generated from
insurance premiums, investmentincome and maturing or liquidating investments,

Cash flows from operating activities in 2001 amounted to $ 1.8 million and represents improved cash flow than in the prior
two years. Cash flows of $15.1 million and $33.6 million were used in operating activities during 2000 and 1999 as declines
in premium rates, increases in ceded reinsurance premium costs and increases in severity claim payments on a gross basis
negatively affected cash flows from operations. The Company’s loss payments of Asbestos/Environmental business also
adversely affected cash flows during the past three years. The cash flows used in operating activities during 2000 and 1999
were made available by investing activities and, in particular, through the sale or maturity of fixed income securities
or short-term investments. Cash flows are expected to be adversely affected in the future as a result of future declines in
aircraft premiums as the Company does not expect to underwrite any new or renewal policies on adirect basis subsequent to
March 31, 2002.

Financing activities occurred, in prior years, as aresult of borrowings under the Company's revolving credit agreement and
unsecured credit facility. Repayments under the Company’s existing loan were made at $1,250,000 per quarter over the past
three years through December 31, 2001. The Company borrowed approximately $5.5 million in 200{ to assist in the
payment of gross losses of the Company. The loan amount results from draw downs during 200 | on existing letters of credit
provided to support the operations of MMO London. As of December 31,2001, the balance of the letter of credit was 0.1
million Pounds Sterling, or $14.7 million. This amount may be subject to future draw downs to fund the payment of losses that
resuit from the runoff of unpaid losses from MMO London.

The Company’s liquidity is not dependent on the use of off-balance sheet financing arrangements.

There were no related party transactions which had a material effect on the Company’s financial position, cash flows,
liquidity or resulis of operations. Specific related party transactions are disclosed in Note [ 6 of the Company’s financial
statements.

The following table outlines the major contractual obligations of the Company and the years in which they become due.

2002 2003

(In millions)
INOTES PAYADIE ..ottt es s ensss s sn s $7.9 —
OPerating l@aSES ........c.cvrvruirninirerenieiseresescsesssss st ssssessesssscses $1.2 $1.2

The Company adheres to investment guidelines set by the Finance Committee of the Board of Directors. The investment
guidelines are conservatively designed to provide the Company with adequate capital growth and sufficientliquidity to meet
existing obligations. Such guidelines consider many factors including anticipated tax position and regulatory requirements.

The Company maintains a position of investments in bonds from various states and municipalities. Such securities receive
favorable tax treatment under existing tax laws. The investment position is monitored regularly, and as a result, the Company
may change its investment in such securities from year to year after consideration of the alternative minimum tax.

Under the Common Stock Repurchase Plan, the Company may purchase up to $55,000,000 of the Company’s issued and
outstanding shares of common stock on the open market. During 2000, the Company repurchased 529,400 shares of
common stock, under the Company’s Common Stock Repurchase Plan, for a total cost of approximately $6.9 million. During
200! and 2000, the Company issued 4,540 and 9,074 treasury shares, respectively, in connection with the compensation of
its Directors. As of December 31,2001, the Company had repurchased, net of treasury shares issued, a total of 2,639,868
shares-of common stock at a tota! cost of approximately $45,2 19,570 at market prices ranging from $12.38 t0 $28.81 per
share.

NYMAGIC's principal source of cash flow is dividends from its insurance company subsidiaries which is then used to fund
various operating expenses, including interest expense, loan repayments and the payment of any dividends to shareholders.
The Company’s domestic insurance company subsidiaries are limited by statute in the amount of dividends that may be
declared or paid during a year. The limitation restricts dividends paid or declared to the lower of [0% of policyholders’
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surplus or 100% of net investmentincome as defined under New York Insurance Law. The limitations on dividends from the
insurance company subsidiaries are not expected to have a material impact on the Company'’s ability to meet current cash.
Dividends can be paid from Syndicate 1265 through MMO London to the extent solvency margins are maintained and after
the closing of an underwriting year, which occurs three years following the beginning of a calendar year. The Company does
not expect to receive a dividend from the closing of any underwriting years.

Critical accounting policies

The Company discloses significant accounting policies in the footnotes of its financial statements. Management considers
certain accounting policies to be critical with respect to the understanding of the Company’s financia! statements. Such
policies require significant management judgment and the resulting estimates have a material effect on reported results and will
vary to the extent that future events affect such estimates and cause them to differ from the estimates provided currently.
These critical accounting policies include unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, allowance for doubtful accounts and
impairment of investments.

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses are based on individual case estimates for losses reported. A provision is also
included, based on actuarial estimates utilizing historical trends in the frequency and severity of paid and reported claims, for
losses incurred but not reported, salvage and subrogation recoveries and for loss adjustment expenses. Unpaid losses with
respect to Asbestos/Environmental risks are difficult for management to estimate and require considerable judgment due to
the uncertainty regarding the significant issues surrounding such claims. For a further discussion concerning Asbestos/Environ-
mental reserves, see “Reserves”. Management continually reviews and updates the estimates for unpaid losses and any
changes resulting therefrom are reflected in operating results currently. The potential for future adverse or favorable loss
development is highly uncertain and subject to a variety of factors including, but not limited to, court decisions, legisiative
actions and inflation. Unpaid losses amounted to $534. 2 million and $41!.3 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on management’s review of amounts due from insclvent or financially impaired
companies. Allowances are estimated for both premium receivables and reinsurance receivables. Management continually
reviews and updates such estimates for any changes in the financial status of companies. For a further discussion concerning
reinsurance receivables see “’Reinsurance Ceded”. The allowance for doubtful accounts on reinsurance receivables amounted
to $17.6 million and $7.7 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts on
premiums and other receivables amounted to $450,000 at December 31,2001 and 2000.

Impairment of investments, included in realized gains or losses, result from declines in the fair value of investments which are
considered by management to be other than temporary. Management reviews investments for impairment based upon
specific criteria that inciude the duration and extent of declines in fair value of the security below its cost or amortized cost.
Approximately $4.4 million and $2.8 million were charged to results from operations in 2001 and 2000, respectively,
resulting from fair value declines considered to be other than temporary. Gross unrealized gains and losses on fixed maturities
amounted to approximately $5.3 million and $1.6 million, respectively, at December 31,2001 . Gross unrealized gains and
losses on equity securities amounted to approximately $8.0 million and $.6 miliion, respectively, at December 31, 2001.

Efffect of recent accounting pronouncements

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 33, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”,
(“SFAS 133”) was issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) in June 1998. SFAS 133 requires derivatives
to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives not considered as hedges are recorded at fair value with any
change in the fair value of the derivative recorded in the income statement. For derivatives that qualify as a hedge, changes in
the fair value of the derivative are offset against changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities and are recognized
in the income statement or in other comprehensive income depending on the effectiveness of the hedge. SFAS 133 s effective
for years beginning after June 15, 1999.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities-
Deferral of the Effactive Date of FASB Statement No. 1337, (“SFAS 137”) was issued by the FASB in 1999 and deferred the
effective date of SFAS 133 to fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000.
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The Company uses derivatives, in the form of an interest rate swap, for hedging purposes as part of its strategy for interest
rate management. The Company adopted SFAS 133 on January |, 2001 and such adoption did not have a material effect on
its financial statements.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, (“SFAS 142”) was issued by
the FASB in June 2001 and changes the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets effective January |,2002. Goodwill
and certain intangible assets will be required to be tested for impairment at feast annually. The adoption of SFAS 142 will not
have a material effect on the Company'’s financial statements.

Inflation

Periods of inflation have prompted the pools, and consequently the Company, to react quickly to actual or potential
imbalances between costs, including claim expenses, and premium rates. These imbalances have been corrected mainty
through improved underwriting controls, responsive management information systems and frequent review of premium rates
and loss experience.

inflation also affects the final settdlement costs of claims, which may not be paid for several years. The longer a claim takes
to settle, the more significant the impact of inflation on final settlement costs. The Company periodically reviews outstanding
claims and adjusts reserves for the pools based on a number of factors, including inflation.

ftem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market risk includes the potential for future losses due to reasonably possible changes in the fair value of financial instru-
ments which relates mainly to the Company’s investment portfolio. Those risks associated with the investment portfolio
include the effects of exposure to adverse changes in interest rates, credit quality, equity prices and foreign exchange rates.

The largest market risk to the Company relates to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk includes the changes in the fair value
of fixed maturities based upon changes in interest rates. This risk is considered when developing benchmarks for evaluating
the Company’s portfolio. Such benchmarks also consider the overall duration of the Company’s loss reserves. Through the
matching of cash flows from future maturing investments and the ultimate payout pattern of loss reserves, the Company
believes it can minimize the effect of interest rate risk.

The following tabular presentation outlines the expected cash flows of fixed maturities available for sale for each of the next
five years and the aggregate cash flows expected for the remaining years thereafter based upon maturity dates. Fixed
maturities include taxable and tax-exempt securities with applicable weighted average interest rates. Taxables also include
mortgage-backed securities that have prepayment features which may cause actual cash flows to differ from those based on
maturity date.

Future cash flows of expected principal amounts

(Dollars in millions)

Total Total

There- Amortized Fair

Fixed maturities 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 after Cost Value
Tax-exempts — $6 $5 — — $54 $65 $68
Average interestrate — 52% 4.0% — — 6.8% — —
Taxables $5 $41 $34 $17 $32 $57 $186 $186
Average interestrate 7.5% 57% 66% 74% 62% 54% — —
Total $5 $47 $39 $17 $32 $i0i $251 $254

Credit quality risk includes the risk of default by issuers of debt securities. The Company’s investment guidelines are
conservatively designed and prevent the investment in securities below a Baa2 rating. Overall, the Company maintains fixed
maturities with an average credit quality rating of Aal as of December 31,2001. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is
considered minimal.
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Foreign currency risk includes exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates on the market value and interestincome of
foreign denominated investments. MMO London operations maintains cash and investments in British Pounds Sterling with 2
US equivalent of $3,32 1,172 to the extent business is derived from transactions in such currency. The investment of cash fiows
from business written in Pounds Sterling in securities of the same foreign currency should ultimately mitigate the risk associ-
ated with changes in foreign exchange rates with respect to British Pounds Sterling.

Equity risk includes the potential loss from changes in the fair value of equity securities. The Company’s equity securities are
traded on major stock exchanges and are highly liquid. The investment in such securities are limited by the Company’s
investment guidelines to 25% of statutory surplus in order to minimize the impact of large changes in the stock market on its
surplus.

The Company monitors market risks on a regular basis through meetings with investment advisors, examining the existing
portfolio and reviewing potential changes in investment guidelines, the overall effect of which is to allow management to make
informed decisions concerning the impact that market risks have on the portfolio.

ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The consolidated financial statements required in response to this item are included as part of ltem [14(a) of this report.

ltem ©. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting
and Financial Disclosure

None.
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PART [0l

itemn 10. Directors and Executive Cfficers of the Registrant

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference herein from NYMAGIC's Proxy Statement for the 2002
Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

item [ 1. Executive Compensation

The information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference herein from NYMAGIC's Proxy Statement for the 2002
Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Gwners and Management

The information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference herein from NYMAGIC's Proxy Statement for the 2002
Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

item §3. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this ltem is incorporated by reference herein from NYMAGIC's Proxy Statement for the 2002
Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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PART IV

item [4. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(@ |I.

3.2.

10.2.1.

10.2.2.

10.2.3.

104.1.

10.4.2.

10.4.3.

10.6.1.

10.6.2.

Financial Statements
The list of financial statements appears in the accompanying index on page 33.

Financial Statement Schedules
The list of financial statement schedules appears in the accompanying index on page 33.

Bxhibits
Form of Certificate of Incorporation. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3-0 of Amendment No. 2 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement No. 33-27665).

Amended and Restated By-Laws. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 of the Registrant’S Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 (Commission file No. i-11238).)

Restated Management Agreement dated as of January |, 1986, by and among Mutual Marine Office, Inc. and
Arkwright-Boston Manufacturers Mutua! Insurance Company, Utica Mutual Insurance Company, Lumber
Mutual Insurance Company, the Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casuaity Insurance Company.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form [0-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1986 (Commission File No. 2-88552).)

Amendment No. 2 to the Restated Management Agreement, dated as of December 30, 1988, by and among
Mutual Marine Office, Inc. and Arkwright Mutual Insurance Company, Utica Mutual Insurance Company,
Lumber Mutual Insurance Company, the Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casualty Insurance
Company. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2.2. of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
dated January 6, 1989 (Commission File No. 2-88552).)

Amendment No. 3 to the Restated Management Agreement, dated as of December 31, 1990 by and among
Mutual Marine Office, Inc. and Arkwright Mutual Insurance Company, Utica Mutual Insurance Company, the
Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casualty Insurance Company. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2.3. of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisca! year ended December 31, 1990
(Commission File No. 3-27665).)

Restated Management Agreement dated as of January |, 1986, by and among Mutual Inland Marine Office, Inc.
and Arkwright-Boston Manufacturers Mutual Insurance Company, Utica Mutual Insurance Company, Lumber
Mutual Insurance Company, the Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casualty Insurance Company.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form |0-K for the fiscal year
ended December 3!, 1986 (Commission File No. 2-88552).)

Amendment No. 2 to the Restated Management Agreement, dated as of December 30, 1988, by and among
Mutual Inland Marine Office, Inc. and Arkwright Mutual Insurance Company, Utica Mutual Insurance
Company, Lumber Mutual Insurance Company, the Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casualty
Insurance Company. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4.2 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K, dated January 6, 1989 (Commission File No. 2-88552).)

Amendment No. 3 to the Restated Management Agreement, dated as of December 31, 1990, by and among
Mutual inland Marine Office, Inc. and Arkwright Mutual Insurance Company, Utica Mutual lnsurance
Company, the Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casualty Insurance Company. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4.3. of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1990 (Commission File No. 3-27665).)

Restated Management Agreement dated as of January |, 1986, by and among Mutual Marine Office of the
Midwest, Inc. and Arkwright-Boston Manufacturers Mutual Insurance Company, Utica Mutual Insurance
Company, Lumber Mutual Insurance Company, the Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casualty
Insurance Company. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1986 (Commission File No. 2-88552).)

Amendment No. 2 to the Restated Management Agreement dated as of December 30, 1988, by and among
Mutual Marine Office of the Midwaest, Inc. and Arkwright Mutual Insurance Company, Utica Mutual Insurance
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Company, Lumber Mutual Insurance Company, the Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casualty
Insurance Company. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6.2 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K, dated January 6, 1989 (Commission File No. 2-88552).)

Amendment No. 3 to the Restated Management Agreement dated as of December 31, 1990, by and among
Mutual Marine Office of the Midwest, Inc. and Arkwright Mutual Insurance Company, Utica Mutual Insurance
Company, the Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casualty Insurance Company. (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6.3. of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1990 (Commission File No. 3-27665).)

Restated Management Agreement dated as of January |, 1986, by and among Pacific Mutual Marine Office, Inc.
and Arkwright-Boston Manufacturers Mutual Insurance Company, Lumber Mutual Insurance Company, Utica
Mutual Insurance Company, the Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casualty Insurance Company.
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 1986 (Commission File No. 2-88552).)

Amendment No. 2 to the Restated Management Agreement dated as of December 30, 1988, by and among
Pacific Mutual Marine Office, Inc. and Arkwright Mutual Insurance Company, Lumber Mutual Insurance
Company, Utica Mutual Insurance Company, the Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casualty
Insurance Company. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8.2 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form
8-K, dated January 6, 989 (Commission File No. 2-88552).)

Amendment to Restated Management Agreement dated as of December 31, 1990, by and among Pacific
Mutual Marine Office, Inc. and Arkwright Mutual Insurance Company, Utica Mutual Insurance Company, the
Registrant and Pennsylvania National Mutual Casualty Insurance Company. (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8.3. of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992
(Commission File No. 1-11238).)

1991 Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference as Exhibit A to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its
199 | Annual Meeting of Shareholders (Commission File No. |-11238).)

Form of Indemnification Agreement. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of Registrant’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 (Commission File No. |-11238).)

1999 NYMAGIC, INC. Phantom Stock Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 (Commission File No. |-11238).)

Executive Severance Pay Plan, effective as of January 31, 2000, for the benefit of Lawrence S. Davis. (Incorpo-
rated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31,2000 (Commission File No. |-11238).)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of KPMGLLP

Reports on Form 8-

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section |3 or |1 5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused
this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

NYMAGIC, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Robert W, Baile
Robert W. Bailey

Chief Executive Cfficer
Date: March 25, 2002

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following
. persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Name Title Date

[s/ John R. Anderson Director March 25, 2002
lohn R. Anderson

[s/ Robert V. Bailey Director, Chairman and March 25, 2002
Robert W. Bailey Chief Executive Officer

[s/ Jonathan S, Bannett Director March 25, 2002
Jonathan S. Bannett

[s/John N. Blackman, |r. Director March 25, 2002
John N. Blackman, Jr.

[s/ Mark W. Blackman Director March 25, 2002
Mark W. Blackman

{s/ John Kean, |r. Director March 25, 2002
John Kean, Jr.

[s/ Costa N. Kensington Director March 25, 2002
Costa N. Kensington

[s/ Charles A. Mitchell Director - March 25, 2002
Charles A. Mitchell

s/ William R. Scarbrough Director March 25, 2002
William R. Scarbrough

[s/ Robert G. Simses Director March 25, 2002
Robert G. Simses

[s/ Edward |. Waite |l| : Director March 25, 2002
Edward |. Waite |l

[s/ Glenn R. Yanoff Director March 25, 2002
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
NYMAGIC, INC.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NYMAGIC, INC. and sub-
sidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income,
shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended Decem-
ber 31,2001. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we have also
audited the financial statement schedules as listed in the accompanying index. These consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial state-
ments and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An auditincludes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of NYMAGIC, INC. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the
related financia! statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated finan-
cial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein.

KPMGLLP
New York, New York
February 19, 2002
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NYMAGIC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

ASSETS

Investments:
Fixed maturities available for sale at fair value

(amortized cost $250,861,503 and $275,291,173) ..ccevveeervnerennnns
Equity securities available for sale at fair value

(cost $38,230,182 and $47,115,772) ceceeverivereerreieeecneeeesrsnenns
Short-term INVESIMENTS ...cvcivieeierecreeniiiiesriesreeseerreeteesresrresesnsessersetestens

TOtal INVESTMENTS .vviivrriiereeeieriieieitecette st esseresesrbeesteeasesnresesseeesrreesen

Accrued iNVeStMENTINCOME ......ciiiieireceeeererireeesieeseeeetveesreessrererseesseeenes
Premiums and other receivables, NeT ........ccoociciiicceesiieeeecee s neeens
Reinsurance receivables ..........cccviiiieeciiinieeniiere e ees e
Deferred policy acquUISItion COSLS ......ccevurmeeeerrereroirenereneeriieesisseienens
Prepaid reinsurance premiums ...
Deferred iNCOME tAXES ....cevciiicecir et eerree vt crere s sre e e sessaesennees
Property, improvements and equipment, Net ..........ccoeiinninieenercinienns
ORI @SSELS ...oovvveerereeeeieiereieste e ereereereeresree e etreranreseseresesse st sabessensessanes

TOLAl @SSELS ..oevvierriieeeree ettt s st ee st s et s s stesesnts e ennresereeesntes

LIABILITIES

Unpaid losses and loss adjustment Xpenses ..........c.coeeereereeenniisiininieenns
Reserve for unearned premiums .........ccvcceiveiicnieecrneerenns
Ceded reinsurance payable ...
Notes payable ..o
Other l@bIlIES .......ccovviriiiiiii s

Total Habilities ..covevveereee ettt s ar s eesesare s sernnes

- SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CommMON STOCK ...vviiiiii e s
Paid-in capital ..........cooevmvirniiiiii e
Accumulated other comprehensive income ...,
Retained @arnings ..ot

Treasury stock, at cost, 5,855,826 and 5,860,366 shares ........c.ccceueenrn.
Total shareholders' equity ...,
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity ..........ocoviviiniceinniiiininn,

2001 2000

$254,485,045 $279,465,655
46,257,871 58,991,670
65,423,833 32,834,155
366,166,749 371,291,480
2,881,077 552,322
4,247,031 4,604,185
74,893,585 53,984,744
361,748,784 248,048,171
8,167,663 5,354,489
18,786,075 19,210,358
12,787,627 10,504,182
1,091,449 1,225,281
6,226,696 5,553,991
$856,996,736 $720,329,203
$534,189,062 $411,266,969
65,070,990 60,435,774
27,393,696 15,043,696
7911,253 7,458,413
23,159,868 9,834,642
657,724,869 504,039,494
15,123,658 15,018,392
29,702,414 27,992,916
7,930,180 10,918,088
195,654,314 211,565,023
248,410,566 265494419
(49,138,699) (49,204,710)
199,271,867 216,289,709
$856,996,736 $720,329,203

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NYMAGIC, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Revenues:
Net Premiums arned ............cvevreererireeenercnetensnsesersssssneeens $ 84,632,597 $ 75,448,179 $ 56,155,156
ComMMISSION INCOME covveeeerereceererirreesssreeesreeesenesessesssstessssnees 3,312,449 902,653 1,956,276
Net INVESIMENTINCOME ...iiieeeeeireteerreeereeeeseeeesaresssresesreressas 17,387,510 18,076,089 18,641,619
Realized investment gains ... 2,874,573 5,246,802 12,503,731
Othar iNCOME ...eeeeveererirerierererresrereresesters e sseses s sesesesesrons 284,926 1,059,638 237,701
TOLaAl FEVENUES .ecvevvvereririrereseeeeeeeeeeeterersassassbesseseseseseseecacs 108,492,055 100,733,361 89,494,483
Expenses:
Netlosses and loss adjustment expenses incurred ................. 87,900,636 68,062,971 36,853,012
Policy acquisition EXPenses ... 16,083,412 18,177,724 11,077,382
General and administrative 8XPanses .........o.wimieniins 16,952,636 19.439,484 19,326,472
INtEreSt EXPENSE ...ttt st 394,717 712,424 1,057,993
Total @XPENnSES ...t 121,331,401 106,392,603 68,314,859
Income (loss) before income taxes .........coevvvevenicccininicncinens (12,839,346) (5,659,242) 21,179,624
Income tax provision:
CUITENT ceeeemenirceiceeeee ettt et s es s bea et sesene 798,389 1,275,620 3,189,162
DEfErTed ....ccoceeemerereieieeirrisieiereseeeeet ettt st (498,742) (1,432,748) 1,577,201
Total income tax expense (benefit) ......ooeeevveriirreenenerennns 299,647 (157,128) 4,766,363
MNet income (JOSE) ..o $(13,138993) $ (5502,114) $ 16,413,26!
Weighted average number of shares of

common stock outstanding-basiC.........c.oveveereeeererererereeennnns 9,231,698 9,243,669 9,687,466
Basic earnings (Joss) per share ......ccovveieecernnecrennen. $(1.42) $(.60) $1.69
Weighted average number of shares of

common stock outstanding-difuted ...........orvvcenrriinecnnn 9,231,698 9,243,669 9,687,466
Diluted earnings (loss) per share ..., $(1.42) $(.60) $1.69

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NYMAGIC, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Year ended December 31,

Common stock:

Balance, beginning of year ...........cooovviinnian,
Sharesissued ........c.c.coeveeeierereeeeeneenns

Balance,end of year .....c.ceceviininnnivninninn

Paid-in capital:

Balance, beginning of year ........cccccovvineicinnnnne
Shares issued and other ........c.cveveveeriererereenenns

Balance, end of year .........cccccovveomnvnninicni

Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Balance, beginning of year .......cccvvniinnnniinninnin

Unreazlized gain (loss) on securities,

net of reclassification adjustment .............ccccevnviciiinenee.
Foreign currency translation adjustments ........c...coceecennee.

Other comprehensive income (l0ss) .....c.ou.....

Balance, end of year ......cccovecciiviniiinnnen,

Retained earnings:

Balance, beginning of year ...........cccceeiniinns
Netincome (1085) .......ccoovveniiienininiicniecns
Dividends declared .........cccoevvviininiiinnnnnnn

Balance, end of year e

Treasury stock, at cost:

Balance, beginning of year ..........ccocovvvievnennnn
Net repurchase of common stock ...

Balance, end of year ...,

Total Shareholders' Equity

Comprehensive income:

Netincome (I0SS) ....vvereeverrerrrererereeeeceeniinnns
Other comprehensive income (10ss) ...............

Comprehensive income (I0ss) .....ccccccouenenas

Common stock, par value ${ each:

Issued, beginning of year .........covevvvvvviiiininnn,
Sharesissued ..o

Issued, end of year ..........coevvvvimnniniiniinnnns

Common stock, authorized shares,
par value $| each

Common stock, shares outstanding, end of year

Dividends declared per share ..o

20010

2000

1999

$ 15018,392

$ 15017,892

$ 15,017,892

105,266 500 —
15,123,658 15,018,392 15,017,892
27,992,916 27935907  28,029.410

1,709,498 57,009 (93,503)
29,702,414 27992916 27,935,907
10,918,088 9,931,438 19,436,591
(3,314,447) 445,53 (9,428,336)

326,539 541,119 (76,817)
(2,987,908) 986,650 (9,505,153)

7,930,180 10,918,088 9,931,438

211,565,023 220,736,910 208,198,204
(13,138,993)  (5502,114) 16,413,261
2,771,716)  (3,669,773)  (3,874,555)
195,654,314 211,565,023 220,736,910
(49,204,710)  (42,479,788)  (42,502,230)
66,011 (6,724,922) 22,442
(49,138,699)  (49,204,710)  (42,479,788)
$199,271,867 $216,289,709  $231,142,359
(13,138993)  (5502,114) 16,413,261
(2,987,908) 986,650 (9,505, 153)

$ (16,126,901

$ (4.515.464)

$ 6,908,108

Number of Shares

15,018,392 15,017,892 15,017,892
105,266 500 —
15,123,658 15,018,392 15,017,892
30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000
9,267,832 9,158,026 9,677,852
$.30 $.40 $.40

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NYMAGIC, [NC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Cash flows from operating activities:
Netincome (I0Ss) .....ccceieiiievnmeenenrens $(13,138,993)  $(5,502,114) $i6,413,261
Adjustments to reconcile netincome (loss) to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Provision for deferred taxes ..o (498,742) (1,432,748) 1,577,201
Realized investment gains ..., (2,874,573) (5,246,802) (12,503,731)
Netbond amortization ............ccveceeeveniniiiininnen 710,443 1,113,936 2,136,408
Depreciation and other, Net.........covvvverenninicsseniiiinn 427,799 825,543 699,107
Changes in:
Premiums and other receivables ...........ccoeieiivninniiinn, (20,908,84 1) 2,018,564 (14,580,395)
Reinsurance receivables ..., (113,700,613) 7,713,589 (56,030,958)
Ceded reinsurance payable ... 12,350,000 (14,401,579) 5,649,283
Accrued iNVeStMENTINCOME ....ovvueerieeereeeeerieererereeeveerensnens 357,154 591,042 994,639
Deferred policy acquisition COSTS .........cvvmeieinieininneiiians (2,813,174) (503,902) (573,157)
Prepaid reinsurance premiums ...........cccceeeeenevenesnneesieiniens 424,283 9,386,997 (9,203,809)
Other @SSELS .....voveuereverereerererennrereererereres et snsaeasns (672,705) (489,360) 1,482,772
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses ..........ccceune. 122,922,093 (14,202,156) 23,884,979
Reserve for unearned premiums ..........ccoveeerevessnereeenens 4,635,216 4,402,493 9,154,731
Foreign currency translation adjustments .......ccccovvnnierccennn 326,539 541,119 (76,817)
Other liabilities .....c.cerevererercrrrcceeeriie s 14,241,029 131,019 (2,667,157)
Total adjUSTMENTS ..c.coverereririneinrneei e 14,925,908 (9,552,245)  (50,056,904)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ............... 1,786,915 (15,054,359)  (33,643,643)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Fixed maturities acqUired ........conrrencennnneninese s (244,020,478) (232,437,048)  (105,025,752)
Equity securities acquired ..........cooieiinnnneecnnnns (22,390,406) (48,277,165) (60,300,853)
Net purchase of short-term investments .......cccceeeeererenee. (32,577,834) (5,023,999)  (11,540,504)
Fixed Maturities MatuUred .........ocvevrevverervrereireeeiesrereseensnns 18,947,896 15,744,648 26,005,874
Fixed maturities Sold .......ccuvemiiiiniinans 254,449,145 241,119,297 118,911,079
Equity securities sold ..., 27,781,388 59,111,119 74,124,696
Acquisition of property and equipment, Nt ..........ccocevercnnnns (293,9267) (257,948) (150,962)
Net cash provided by investing activities .........cccocovereecirererens 1,895,744 29,978,904 42,023,578
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from stock issuance and other .........ccvvivinenninee 1,814,764 57,509 (93,503)
Cash dividends paid to stockholders........ccooereeiiiinennnen (3,687,519) (3,721,755) (3,875,319)
Net repurchase of common stock ........ceerireriniinnennn 66,011 (6,724,922) 22,442
Proceeds from borroWings ........ccccerinineieiniinin 5,452,840 —_— —_
Loan principal payments .........oovviiiininenrennnninissoennenines (5,000,000) (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activities ...........ccoveieeievenineriienenn (1,353,904) (15,389,168) (8,946,380)
Net increase (decrease) in cash ..o, 2,328,755 (464,623) (566,445)
Cash at beginning of year ..., 552,322 1,016,945 £,583,390
Cash atend of Year .......cccevvinreccnccnerrniiee s $ 2,881,077 $ 552,322 $ 1,016,945

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
Mature of operations

NYMAGIC, through its subsidiaries, specializes in underwriting ocean marine, inland marine, aircraft and other liability
insurance through insurance pools managed by Mutual Marine Office, Inc. (“MMQO”), Pacific Mutual Marine Office, Inc.
("PMMOQ"}, and Mutual Marine Office of the Midwest, Inc. (“Midwest”). MMO, located in New York, PMMOQ located in San
Francisco, and Midwaest, located in Chicago, manage the insurance pools in which the Company’s insurance subsidiaries,
New York Marine And General Insurance Company (“New York Marine”) and Gotham Insurance Company (“Gotham”),
participate. All premiums, losses and expenses are prorated among pool members in accordance with their pool participation
percentages. Effective January |, 1997 and subsequent, the Company increased to 100% its participation in the business
produced by the pools.

In 1997 the Company formed MMO EU Ltd. as a holding company for MMO UK Ltd. which is a Lloyd’s of London limited
liability corporate vehicle. In 1997, the Company acquired ownership of a company which was renamed MMO Underwriting
Agency, Ltd. MMO Underwriting Agency Ltd., a Lloyd’s managing agency, commenced underwriting in { 998 for the Company’s
wholly owned subsidiary MMO UK, which provides 100% of the capacity for Syndicate 1265. In 2000, the Company sold
MMO Underwriting Agency Ltd. in exchange for aminority interest in Cathedral Capital PLC, which resulted in a pre-tax gain
of approximately $700,000. Syndicate 1265 was placed into runoffin 2000. Effective January |,2001, MMO UK provided
approximately $13.6 million, or 8.4%, of the capacity of Syndicate 2010, which is managed by Cathedral Capital. The assets
and liabilities and results of operations of MMO EU and MMO UK, including its participation interestin Syndicates 1265 and
2010 (collectively referred to as “MMO London”) are included in the consolidated financial statements. In 2002, MMO UK
will ot be providing capacity to any Lloyd’s syndicate.

Basis of reporting

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP), which differ in certain material respects from the accounting principles prescribed or
permitted by state insurance regulatory authorities for the Company’s two domestic insurance subsidiaries. The principal
differences recorded under GAAP are deferred policy acquisition costs, an allowance for doubtful accounts, deferred income
taxes, and fixed maturities held for sale are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses. Actual amounts could differ from those amounts previously estimated.

Consclidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, two insurance subsidiaries, New York Marine
and Gotham, three agency subsidiaries, hereinafter collectively referred to as (“MMO”) and MMO London. Gotham is
owned 25% by the Company and 75% by New York Marine. All other subsidiaries are wholly ownad by NYMAGIC. All
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Investmments

Fixed maturities held for sale are carried at fair value and include those bonds where the Company’s intent to carry such
investments to maturity may be affected in future periods by changes in market interest rates or tax position. Equity securities
{common stocks and non-redeemable preferred stocks) are carried at fair value. Short-term investments are carried at cost
which approximates fair value. Fair value is based upon quotes obtained from independent sources.

Realized investment gains and losses (determined on the basis of firstin first out) also include any declines in value which are
considered to be other than temporary. Management reviews investments for impairment based upon specific criteria that
include the duration and extent of declines in fair value of tha security below its cost or amortized cost. Unrealized apprecia-
tion or depreciation of investments, net of related deferred income taxes, is reflected in accumulated other comprehensive
income in shareholders’ equity.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Derivatives

The Company has an interest rate agreement that was entered into for purposes of hedging interest rate risk on the
Company’s existing note payable. Cash flows as a result of the hedge are recorded as adjustments to interest expense. The
cash flow derivative is carried at fair value in other liabilities. Changes in the fair value of the derivative are recorded to results
of operations.

Premium and policy acquisition cost recognition

Premiums and policy acquisition costs are reflected in income and expense on amonthly pro rata basis over the terms of the
respective policies. Accordingly, unearned premium reserves are established for the portion of premiums written applicable
to unexpired policies in force, and acquisition costs, consisting mainly of net brokerage commissions, and premium taxes
relating to these unearned premiums are deferred to the extent recoverable. The Company has provided an allowance for
uncollectible premium receivables of $450,000 for each year ended December 31, 200{ and 2000, respectively. The
determination of acquisition costs to be deferred considers historical and current loss and loss adjustment expense
experience. In measuring the carrying value of deferred policy acquisition costs consideration is also given to anticipated
investment income using interest rates of 4% and 7% in 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Revenue recognition

Management commission income on policies written by the MMOinsurance pools is recognized primarily as of the effective
date of the policies issued. Adjustments to the policies, resulting principally from changes in coverage and audit adjustments,
are recorded in the period reported.

Contingent profit commission revenue darived from the reinsurance transactions of the insurance pools is recognized when
such amount becomes billable as provided in the treaties to the respective reinsurers. The contingent profit commission
becomes due shortly after the treaty expires.

Reinsurance

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries participate in various reinsurance agreements on both an assumed and ceded basis.
The Company uses various types of reinsurance including quota share, excess of loss and facultative agreements to spread the
risk of loss among several reinsurers and to limitits exposure from losses on any one occurrence. Any recoverable due from
reinsurers is recorded in the period in which the related gross liability is established.

The Company accounts for all reinsurance receivables and prepaid reinsurance premiums as assets.

Depreciation

Property, equipment and leasehold improvements are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

income taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolidated Federal tax return. The Company provides deferred income taxes on
temporary differences between the financial reporting basis and the tax basis of the Company's assets and liabilities based
upon enacted tax rates. The effect of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period of change.

Fair values of financial instruments

The fair value of the Company’s fixed maturity investments is disclosed in Note 2. The Company’s other financial instru-
ments include short-term receivables, derivatives, notes payable and other payables which are recorded at the underlying
transaction value and approximate fair value.
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Foreign currency translation

The assets and liabilities of the Company’s UK operations, recorded in Pounds Sterling, are translated to U.S. dollars at
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date and the resulting adjustments are recorded in accumulated other compre-
hensive income in shareholders’ equity. Revenues and expenses are translated to U.S. dollars using the average exchange rates
for the year. :

Incurred losses

Unpaid losses are based on individual case estimates for losses reported. A provision is also included, based on past
experience, for losses incurred but not reported, salvage and subrogation recoveries and for loss adjustment expenses. The
method of making such estimates and for establishing the resulting reserves is continually reviewed and updated and any
changes resulting therefrom are reflected in operating results currently.

Basic and diluted earnings per share

Basic EPSis calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing netincome by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the year and the dilutive effect of assumed stock option exercises. See Mote { 2 for a reconciliation of the shares outstanding
in determining basic and diluted EPS.

Reclassification

Certain accounts in the prior year’s financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2001 presentation.

Effects of recent accounting proncuncements

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. |33, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”,
("SFAS [33") was issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)in June 1998. SFAS |33 requires derivatives
to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives not considered as hedges are recorded at {air value with any
change in the fair value of the derivative recorded in the income statement. For derivatives that qualify as a hedge, changes in
the fair value of the derivative are offset against changes in the fair value of the hedged assets or liabilities and are recognized
in the income statement or in other comprehensive income depending on the effectiveness of the hedge. SFAS |33 is effective
for years beginning after June 15, 1999.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities-
Deferral of the Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 133", (“SFAS 137”) was issued by the FASBin 1999 and deferred the
effective date of SFAS 133 to fiscal years beginning after June |5, 2000.

The Company uses derivatives, in the form of an interest rate swap, for hedging purposes as part of its strategy for interest
rate management. The Company adopted SFAS 133 on January |, 2001 and such adoption did not have amaterial effect on
the financial statements.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, (“SFAS 142”) was issued by
the FASB in June 2001 and changes the accounting for goodwill and other intangible assets effective January |, 2002. Goodwill
and certain intangible assets will be required to be tested for impairment at least annually. The adoption of SFAS 142 will not
have amaterial effect on the Company’s financial statements.
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(2) Investments:

Asummary of investment components at December 31,2001 consists of the following:

Amount at which
Fair shown in the
Type of Investment Cost Value balance sheet
Fixed maturities available for sale:
Bonds:
United States Governmentand
government agencies and authorities ............evneieinen $ 54,304,843 $ 54,810,350 $ 54,810,350
States, municipalities and political subdivisions ............... 73,053,045 72,806,833 72,806,833
Public UtIlItIES ......covveeriirieeieri et e 4,516,342 4,815,000 4,815,000
All other corporate Bonds ........ocecnerenioinenenennnnens 118,987,273 122,052,862 122,052,862
Total fixed maturities available for sale ......ccccovvviveeeerineienns 250,861,503 254,485,045 254 485,045
Equity securities available for sale:
Common stocks:
PUbliC ULIILIES 1veeeeieeeeciccere e 2,125,487 1,419,835 2,419,835
Banks, trusts and insurance companies..............ovverererenns 3,921,958 4,786,209 4,786,209
Industrial, miscellaneous and all other .......oocveverirvinenne. 32,882,737 39,051,827 39,051,827
Total @QUILY SECUFILIES «....vcrerereeeerireececeiceercre e eieieeeeeas 38,930,182 46,257,871 46,257,871
Short-tarmM INVESEMENTS ..ovicrireieiiet i e srerseesereeeeeseesees 65,423,833 65,423,833 65,423,833
Total INVESTMENTS  .oeeeviereeriirierriste et sreeseeseste s ress ot essronessvens $355,215,518  $366,166,749  $366,166,749

Unrealized depreciation or appreciation of investments (before applicable income taxes) at December 31,2001 and 2000
included gross unrealized gains on equity securities of $7,972,252 and $14,077,825, respectively; and gross unrealized losses
on equity securities of $644,563 and $2,201,927, respectively; and gross unrealized gains on fixed maturities available for sale
of $5,255,382 and $4,645,01 | at December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively; and gross unrealized losses on fixed maturities
available for sale of $1,631,840 and $470,529 at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Included in investments at December 31, 2001 are bonds on deposit with various regulatory authorities as required by law
with a fair value of $9,062,525.

There were no non-income producing fixed maturity investments for each of the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000.

Mortgage backed securities at December 31, 2001 and 2000 are obligations of various U.S. Government agencies
consisting of GNMA, FHLMC or FINMA pass through securities and commercial mortgage backed securities, all of which are
readily marketable.
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The gross unrealized gains and losses on debt securities at December 31,2001 and 2000 are as follows:

2001
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Fixed maturities available for sale:
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.
government corporations and agencies ........... $ 54,304,843 $ 532,860 $ (27,353) $ 54,810,350
Obligations of states and
political SUbdIVISIONS ......c.cccoevermncrirrcricnens 73,053,045 734,463 (980,675) 72,806,833
Corporate SECUFItIES ......ccovrerurarecenccemnrnnerensrmenes 123,503,615 3,988,059 (623,812) 126,867,862
TOLAIS. v nes $250,861,503 $5,255,382 $(1,631,840) $254,485,045
2000
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Fixed maturities available for sale:
U.S. Treasury securities and obligations of U.S.
government corporations and agencies ........... $124,885,322 $1,701,930 $ (13,546) $126,573,706
Obligations of states and
political SUbdIVISIONS ..........covvvreeeeenriiiriienenene 41,433,877 (,101,960 (8,277) 42,527,560
Corporate SeCUrities ......ccoverererererees ISR 108,971,974 1,841,121 (448,706) . 110,364,389
TOLALS .ttt ettt reebens $275,291,173 $4,645,011 $(470,529) $279,465,655

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2001, by contractual maturity, are shown below.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations
with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Fixed maturities available for sale

Amortized : Fair

Cost Value
DU N ONE YEar OF @SS ....c.uereececeeiicerereeerecsasisssese e sesesesnsnemens $ 4,015,073 $ 4,069,429
Due after one year through five years ......c.coovvviiiiiecicninniin 131,683,772 134,980,898
Due after five year's through ten years ..........ccecvvvvnniiiininncnen, 26,158,852 26,809,646
Due after teN YEAIS .....c.cccccuereicrceeeeeeiereeeeeteie e eeesesnenes 62,547,541 61,936,087
‘ 224,405,238 227,796,060
Mortgage backed SECUFIIES .....c.c.cceuimeeruimicccriiinererereisereeeene 26,456,265 26,688,985
TOLAS .ottt $250,861,503 $254,485,045
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The investment portfolio has exposure to market risks which include the effect of adverse changes in interest rates,
credit quality, foreign exchange rates and equity prices on the portfolio. Interest rate risk includes the changes in the fair
value of fixed maturities based upon changes in interest rates. Credit quality risk includes the risk of default by issuers of
debt securities. Foreign currency risk includes exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates on the market value and
interest income of foreign denominated investments. Equity risk includes the potential loss from changes in the fair value of
equity securities.

Proceeds from sales of investments in debt securities during 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $254,449,145,$241,119,297
and $118,911,079, respectively. Gross gains of $6,164,126, $1,183,033 and $929,242 and gross losses of $506,789,
$1,038,655 and $797,483 were realized on those sales in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Realized gains (losses) and unrealized investment appreciation (depreciation} on fixed maturities and equity securities for
the years ended December 31,2001, 2000 and 1999 are as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

Realized gains (losses) of investments:

FIXEd MATUFITIES ..evveviverierereeeeeneeieiereresestseeseresensesssesesesessssores $5,657,337 $ 144,378 $ 131,759

EqUity SEOURITES coucevicrcieirec et reenearenes (2,794,608) 5,027,054 12,378,350

SO t-terTN INVESTTIENTS «.e.eveeesreeveresreeseteseeeeesssressesneosseesen 11,844 75,370 (6,378)

Realized investment ains .........cocovivriiicniiiniescieinaes 2,874,573 5,246,802 12,503,731

Less: applicable income taxes .........cceverereriieneninnererenene. (1,006,101) (1,836,381) (4,376,306)
Net realized iNVESIMENE ZAINS ....ccererrerninrerernsneeseseeseresseeses $1,868,472 $3,410,421 $8,127,425

The Company recorded declines in values of investments considered to be other than temporary of $4,369,240,
$2,839,691 and $2,379,593 for the years ended December 31,2001, 2000 and 1999.

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
Change in unrealized investment appreciatdon
(depreciation) of securities:

FiXed MatUTtES ..oocceerreerreseeecere e essssseeestesessseeecnenin $ (550,940) $7,568,751  $(14,214,047)

EQUILY SECUMIS ...cuuereeieicicecerirace e seee e eoeaenen (4,548,209) (6,883,318) (291,085)

Unrealized investment gains (I0SS€S) ......ccceeveicnierevenennnnnes (5,099,149) 685,433 (14,505,132)

Less: applicable deferred income taxes ..........cccoccevvueuvunene 1,784,702 (239,902) 5,076,796
Net unrealized investment gains (10SSeS) .......cocooreevereeecerennna. $(3.314,447) $ 445531 $ (9,428,336)

Net investment income from each major category of investments for the years indicated is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999
FiXed MAtUFILIES vovvieriivricreiee ettt rrer e erre et eare e esesresnsenrestean $15,734,345 $16,376816 $17,686,462
ShOIM-LEIrM INVESTIMENLS .evvvvvrereiiieieeereeererresaeesenreereessesseensesses 1,571,226 1,653,764 994,215
Equity SECUTItIES ...ovceiiiiiiiieeectc e 846,854 836,917 815,161
Total iNVesStMENTINCOME ..viveeecreceireire i e e eeteeaesans 18,152,425 18,867,497 19,495,838
INVESTMENL EXPEMSES ..cooiveererercriiic e (764,215) (791,408) (854,219)
INETINVESTMENTINCOME .veveeveieriisreeeeeerereseeeesesssessessessenes $17,387,510 $18,076,089 $18,641,619
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(3) Fiduciary Funds (unaudited):

The Company’s insurance agency subsidiaries maintain separate underwriting accounts which record all of the underlying
insurance transactions of the insurance pools which they manage. These transactions primarily include collecting premiums
from the insureds, collecting paid receivables from reinsurers, paying claims as losses become payable, paying reinsurance
premiums to reinsurers and remitting net account balances to member insurance companies in the pools which MMO
manages. Unremitted amounts to members of the insurance pools are held in a fiduciary capacity and interestincome earned
on such funds inure to the benefit of the members of the insurance pools based on their pro rata participation in the pools.

A summary of the pools’ underwriting accounts as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 is as follows:

December 310,

2001 2000
Cash and short-Lerm INVESTMENTS c.eeveveeeeereceeeeeeeeereeeesereeseeesesrenes $ 29,038,361 $ 864,339
Premiums receivable. ....viiviiirieiirrenes e rear e s e 43,202,082 44,085,797
Reinsurance and other receivables ........oovviveeeriiiieieeeereeecre e sseeens 58,908,842 48,546,626
TOAl ASSELS .....eeveereiererereerrerreresensenenasesseseseresseseseesenesnsesesssaenesssnens $131,149,285 $93,496,762
Due to insurance pool members ........ccccuvemeeeiinvccniiiererninesnns 67,729,159 64,237,587
Reinsurance payable ... 21,225,697 14,181,286
Funds withheld from reinsurers ......c.cvvinirerenveescceecevreesserenens 34,316,558 8,240,251
Other Habiliti@s .....cocoveivveviriiriiee ettt eecerr s er et e serssaree s 7,877,871 6,837,638
Total abilItIes ...vccveiviiiiereiinecrieer et s ebs e ennes $131,149,285 $93.496,762

A portion of the pools’ underwriting accounts above have been included in the Company’s insurance subsidiaries opera-
tions based upon their pro rata participation in the MMO insurance pools.

{(4) Insurance Operations:
Reinsurance transactions

Approximately 39%, 34% and 53% of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries’ direct and assumed gross premiums written
for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, have been reinsured by the pools with other compa-
nies on both a treaty and a facultative basis.

Two former pool members, Utica Mutual Insurance Company (“Utica Mutual”) and Arkwright Mutual Insurance Company
(“Arkwright™), currently part of the FM Global Group, withdrew from the pools in 1994 and 1996, respectively, and retained
liability for their effective pool participation for all loss reserves, including IBNR (incurred but not reported) and unearned
premium reserves attributable to policies effective prior to their withdrawal from the pools.

In the event that all or any of the pool companies might be unable to meet their obligations to the pools, the remaining
companies would be liable for such defaulted amounts on a pro rata pool participation basis. The Company is not aware of any
uncertainties with respect to any possible defaults by either Arkwright or Utica Mutual with respect to their pool obligations,
which mightimpact liquidity or results of operations of the Company.

A contingent liability exists with respect to reinsurance ceded since such transactions generally do notrelieve the Company
of its primary obligation to the policyholder and such reinsurance ceded would become a liability of the Company’s insurance
subsidiaries in the event that any reinsurer might be unable to meet the obligations assumed under the reinsurance agreements.
All reinsurers must meet certain minimum standards of financial condition as established by the pools. The Company'’s largest
unsecured reinsurance receivables at December 31, 200 were from Arkwright, Utica Mutual, Lloyd’s of London (“Lloyd’s”),
including amounts from Equitas, a company formed to handle the runoff obligations of Lloyd's of London for- policy years 1992 and

45




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

prior, and Swiss Reinsurance America Corp. (“Swiss Re”), with aggregate receivables of approximately $18 million, $8
million, $77 million (including $5 million from Equitas), and $6 million, respectively. The most recent A.M. Best rating was A+
for Arkwright, A for Utica Mutual, and A++ for Swiss Re. The definitions of the above A.M. Best ratings are as follows: A++ and
A* (Superior); A (Excellent).

In addition, as of December 31,2001, the Company maintains net unsecured reinsurance receivables of approximately $12
million from areinsurer which is under corporate reorganization proceedings. In 200, the Company provided an allowance
of $2.8 million against such receivables. It is reasonably possible that the Company may receive from this reinsurer future
recoveries that are less than the current balances, net of the allowance. Under such circumstances, the Company's results
from operations would be adversely affected in the future.

The Company has not experienced any difficulties in collecting amounts due from Lloyd’s and the setitement of receivables
due the Company has not materially impacted its liquidity. However, given the uncertainty surrounding the sufficiency of assets
in Equitas to meet its ultimate obligations, there is a reasonable possibility that the Company’s collection efforts relating to its
Lioyd’s receivables might be adversely affected in the future. The unsecured reinsurance receivable due from Equitas at
December 31, 200] was approximately $5 million.

The Company’s exposure to reinsurers, other than those indicated above, include reinsurance receivables from approxi-
mately 660 reinsurers or syndicates, and as of December 31, 2001, no single one was liable to the Company for an unsecured
amount in excess of approximately $3 million.

Funds withheld of approximately $20 million and letters of credit of approximately $ 1 35 million as of December 31,2001
were obtained as defined under various reinsurance treaties. Reinsurance receivables as of December 31,2001 and 2000
included an allowance for uncollectible reinsurance receivables of $17,606,000 and $7,662,000, respectively. The charge to

operations resulting from write-offs for uncollectible reinsurance amounted to approximately $10.8 million, $ 1.0 million and
$1.0 million in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

In 2000, MMO London entered into a reinsurance transaction involving the assumption of approximately $7.4 million in
ocean marine and casualty premiums.

Reinsurance ceded and assumed relating to premiums written were as follows:

Gross Ceded Assumed Percentage

(direct) to other from other of assumed
Year Ended amount companies companies  Netamount tonet
December 31,2001 ... $110,458,558 $57,950,842 $37,184,381 $89,692,097 41%
December 31,2000......ccevmvnenee. 88,558,156 45,355,855 46,035,368 89,237,669 52%
December 31, 1999 ...ccccvevenvicrcrennee 82,065,506 62,303,230 36,343,802 56,106,078 65%

Reinsurance ceded and assumed relating to premiums earned were as follows:

Gross Ceded Assumed Percentage

(direct) to other from other of assumed
Year Ended amount companies companies  Netamount tonet
December 31,2001 ....cocovrveveicnenne $102,264,906 $58,375,125 $40,742,816 $84,632,597 48%
December 31,2000........ccuverureenee. 86,523,483 54,742,852 43,667,548 75,448,179 58%
December 31, 1999 ......ccevevverenene 75,856,987 53,099,421 33,397,590 56,155,156 59%

Losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred are net of ceded reinsurance recoveries of $196,709,032, $85,766,299, and
$129,021,415 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.
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Unpaid losses

Unpaid losses are based on individual case estimates for losses reported and include a provision for losses incurred but not
reported and for loss adjustment expenses. The following table provides a reconciliation of the consolidated liability for losses
and loss adjustment expenses at the beginning and end of 2001, 2000 and 1999:

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000 1999

(In thousands)

Net liability for losses and loss adjustment

expenses at beginning of Year ...........cccevveuveeercevecnrererernennes $199,685 $196,865 $213,589

Provision for losses and loss adjustment .

€XPenses OCCUrTING iN CUTENTYRAN ......ccvivviieroiiemnsiierireiniaenes 78,221 76,425 48,838
Increase (decrease) in estimated losses and loss

adjustment expenses for claims occurring in prior years (" ..... 9,604 (8,484) (12,183)
Deferred income-loss portfolio assumption @ ...........ovnenee. 76 122 198
Netlosses and loss adjustment expenses incurred .................. - 87,901 68,063 36,853
Less:

Net loss and loss adjustment expense payments
for dlaims occurring during:

CUIMTENTYRAT ..cvevirvicreiererinisiirieinis st ssoner e s seseas 20,354 17,530 11,517
PrIOI YEAIS ....veveeeeeereriteesecerire ettt e eoneresesaotons 56,203 47,591 41,862
76,557 65,121 53,379
Add:
Deferred income-loss portfolio assumption @ .........cccceniicunnene (76) (122) (198)
Net liability for losses and loss adjustment
expenses at Year eNd ... 210,953 199,685 196,865
Ceded unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses atyearend ...... 323,236 211,582 228,604
Gross unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses atyear end ....... $534,189 $411,267 $425,469

(1) The adjustment to the consolidated liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses for losses occurring in prior years
reflects the net effect of the resolution of losses for other than full reserve value and subsequent readjustments of loss
values. The increase in 2001 reflects provisions made for insolvent or financially impaired reinsurers and adverse devel-
opment from MMO London due to higher than expected claim frequency. The amount was partially offset by favorable
development in the ocean marine line of business in the domestic insurance companies. The decrease in 2000 and 1999
in estimated losses is attributable to the ocean marine and aircraft lines of business in the domestic insurance companies
as a result of favorable payout trends due, in part, to lower retention levels per loss.

(2) Deferred income-loss portfolio assumption represents the difference between cash received and unpaid loss reserves
assumed as a result of the assumption of net pool obligations from two former pool members which was initially
capitalized and is being amortized over the payout period of the related losses.

The insurance pools participated in both the issuance of umbrella casualty insurance for various Fortune 1000 companies
and the issuance of ocean marine liability insurance for various oil companies during the period from 1978 to 1984, Depending
on the accident year, the insurance pools’ maximum net retention per occurrence after applicable reinsurance ranged from
$250,000 to $1,000,000. The Company’s effective pool participation on such risks varied from | 1%in [978 to 59%in 984.
Subsequent to this period, the pools substantially reduced its umbrella writings and coverage was provided to smaller
insureds. Ocean marine and non-marine policies issued during the past three years contain some coverage for environmental
risks.
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At December 31,2001 and 2000, the Company’s gross, ceded and net loss and loss adjustment expense reserves for all
Asbestos/Environmental policies amounted to $28 million, $16.5 million and $1 1.5 million, and $33.2 million, $20.8 million
and $12.4 million, respectively. The Company had approximately 300 policies at December 31, 2001 and December 31,
2000 which had at least one claim relating to Asbestos/Environmental exposures. The Company believes that the uncertainty
surrounding Asbestos/Environmental exposures, including issues as to insureds’ liabilities, ascertainment of loss date, defini-
tions of occurrence, scope of coverage, policy limits and application and interpretation of policy terms, including exclusions,
all affect the estimation of ultimate losses. Under such circumstances, it is difficult to determine the ultimate loss for Asbestos/
Environmental related claims. Given the uncertainty in this area, losses from Asbestos/Environmental related claims may
develop adversely. However, the Company believes that, in aggregate, the net unpaid loss and loss adjustment expense
reserves as of December 31, 2001, allow for an adequate provision and that the ultimate resolution of the Asbestos/
Environmenta! claims will not have a material impact on the Company’s financial position.

The Company sustained losses in its aircraft line of business as a result of the terrorist attacks of September | |, 2001. The
Company recorded incurred losses from such attacks of $154.9 million and $8.0 million on a gross and net of reinsurance
basis. Additional reinsurance costs were also incurred as aresult of the attacks and amounted to $5.0 million. The ultimate net
liability for unpaid losses resulting from the WTC attack may change from the amount provided currently depending upon
revisions in gross loss estimates and the interpretation as to the number of occurrences as defined in the aircraft ceded
reinsurance treaties. However, the Company’s net liability provided for the WTC attack represents management’s best
estimate based upon a review of all known information.

Salvage and subrogation

Estimates of salvage and subrogation recoveries on paid and unpaid losses have been recorded as a reduction of unpaid
losses amounting to $5,318,810 and $5,222,707 at December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively.

Deferred policy acquisition costs

Deferrable acquisition costs amortized to income amounted to $16,083,412, $18,177,724 and $11,077,382 for the years
ended December 31,2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

(5) Property, Improvements and Equipment, Met:

Property, improvements and equipment, net at December 31, 2001 and 2000 include the following:

2001 2000
Offfice furniture and @GUIPMENT .......rveereierererurseereseresseseesessssesas $ 845,080 $ 814,140
Computer @QUIPIMENT ...t eesnssesentons 1,029,058 766,031
Leasehold improvemants ... 2,332,479 2,332,479
4,206,617 3,212,650
Less: accumulated depreciation and amoirtization ..........ccuvenenne. (3,115,168) (2,687,369)
Property, improvements and equipment, Nt ........ccvcuererrecurenens $1,091,449 $1,225,281

Depreciation and amortization and other expenses for the years ended December 31,2001, 2000, and 1999 amounted to
$427,799, $825,543 and $699, 107, respectively.
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(6) Income Taxes:
The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

December 31,

2001 2000

Deferred Tax Assets: _
LosS reserve diSCOUNTING ........covverereurerererireesesessssiosesnesesessssnssenens $ 8,976,886 $ 9,180,065
Unearned Premiums ..........occeenccrenncncncsenienesrerssssssseeesesnes 3,239,944 2,885,779
Equity securities write-down ..o 1,341,307 : 603,741
LOSS CarTyfOrwards .....o.coeeeeereeereniieeseeerenn e s 11,050,489 8,272,202
Deferred rent liability ........c.coeevriiniiiiinninn 149,520 224418
Bad debt reServe ... ettt s 6,319,740 2,839,290
NG ittt b st sss vt e saes e sbesbbesbsentesraossasnsanssoraens 691,539 1,050,441
Deferred tAX @SSELS ..uvvviriieiereieriireneeseieesstoresseereesrerasesssessssssennes 31,769,425 25,055,936
Less: Valuation alloWanCe ........ccuvevieeeeeeviiiiieineeee et cerereee e 11,050,489 5,859,015
Total deferred taX aSSELS .....occvvviecerierreeeceeeeerree e eaee s ennees 20,718,936 19,196,921
Deferred Tax Liabilities:

Deferred policy acquisition COSES ..., 2,858,682 {,874,071
Unrealized appreciation of investments ..., 3,832,930 5,617,633
Discount on accrued salvage and subrogation .......c..ccccovvvvviinns 241,290 261,476
N ettt ettt ettt et eebesatesaes et e st esasens e seoneesbe st esnrenneen 998,407 939,559
Total deferred tax [iabilities ........cvvveeriiverereiierri e et 7,931,309 8,692,739
INet deferiad CAX ASSEES ..vevrveeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseererereeseeeseeseeerenetstens $12,787,627 $10,504,182

Included in other deferred tax assets at December 31, 2001 is an alternative minimum tax (AMT) credit carryforward of
$351,939. This amount represents the excess of AMT over regular tax, which can be carried forward indefinitely to reduce
any regular tax liabilities occurring in future years.

The last year to which the loss carryforwards can be carried forward against future tax liabilities is the year 2021.

The change in the valuation accountis attributed to loss carryforwards. The Company’s valuation allowance account with
respect to the deferred tax asset and the change in the account is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Balance, beginning of YEar ... $ 5,859,015 $2,191,576 $1,187,445
Change in valuation allowance .........c..ccccoveenenecceinnierencnnenn 5191,474 3,667,439 1,004,131
Balance, end Of YEar .....c.ccvuveeeuererniircrerrecrininresesessneerererennes $11,050,489 $5,859,015 $2,191,576

The change in the valuation account relates primarily to UK loss carryforwards. The valuation account was increased from
60% in 2000 to 100% of the UK loss carryforwards in 2001. The Company does not anticipate recovering any tax benefit
relating to the UK loss carryforwards as it has decided not to provide capacity to any Lloyd's syndicate in 2002.

The Company believes that the total deferred tax asset net of tha recorded valuation allowance account as of December 31,
2001 will more likely than not be fully realized.

49




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Income tax provisions differ from the amounts computed by applying the Federal statutory rate to income before income
taxes as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2€01 20C0 1999
Income taxes at the Federal statutory rate. .........ccoevvirinnns (35.0)% (35.0)% 350 %
Tax eXemMPLinterest ..o ienes (6.2) (40.7) (20.8)
Valuation allowance...........ccccvmiiniiicieiinn 41.5 67.7 4.7
SEALE TAXES vvvivererireriirereinriaereseesrareraes st emreseseses et sserssastennes (0.4 (8.3) (2.4)
Netbond 2MOortization ........c.c.cccveeriniceenieineein. 0.7 6.6 34
Investment INCOME Proration ..........vecercnicnceeiiscennenes 1.0 55 28
OUhEr, NEL ...ttt et sa e 0.7 |.4 0.2)
INCOME LAX PrOVISIONS .veverevereriresrerereresesesserenereneseesorereresesenres 2.3% (2.8)% 225 %

Federal income tax payments amounted to $ 1,807,605, $1,055,877 and $2,61 1,055 for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Federal income tax recoverable included in other assets at December 31, 2001 amounted to $959,516. Federal income
tax payable included in other liabilities at December 3 |, 2000 amounted to $305,672.

Reduction of income taxes paid as a result of the deduction triggered by employee exercise of stock options for the years
ended December 31,2001, 2000 and 1999 amounted to $170,559, $562 and $-0-, respectively. The benefit received was
recorded in paid-in capital.

(7) Statutory Income and Surplus:

The Company’s domestic insurance subsidiaries are limited, based on the lesser of 10% of statutory basis surplus or |00%
of net investment income, as defined under New York Insurance Law, in the amount of dividends they could pay without
regulatory approval. The maximum amount which may be declared to the holding company from December 31, 2001
surplus is approximately $15,000,000.

Combined statutory net income, surplus and dividends declared by the Company’s domestic insurance subsidiaries were as
follows for the periods indicated:

Combined Combined Dividends

Statutory Statutory Declared
Year Ended Net Income Surplus To Parent
December 31,2001 ......ccoceiiieicvcnireceereereeeere e $ 3,238,000 $152,061,000  $12,550,000
December 31, 2000 ......cceveeirivcneeineeererereeeere e 13,146,000 184,688,000 15,475,000
December 31, 1999 ... 25,476,000 200,899,000 19,175,000

The National Association of Insurance Commissioners (the “NAIC”) project to codify statutory accounting principles was
approved by the NAICin 1998. The purpose of codification was to provide a comprehensive basis of accounting for reporting
to state insurance departments. Codification became effective on January |, 2001 and did not have a material effect on the
domestic insurance companies’ statutory surplus.

The approval of codified accounting rules included a provision for the state insurance commissioners to modify such
accounting rules by practices prescribed or permitted for insurers in their state. The domestic insurance companies

are domiciled in New York State, which adopted certain prescribed accounting practices that differ from those approved by
the NAIC.
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{8} Employee Retirement Plans:

The Company maintains two retirement plans for the benefit of employees. Both plans provide for 100% vesting upon
completion of two years of service. The Money Purchase Plan provides for a contribution equal to 7.5% of an employee’s cash
compensation, including bonuses, for each year of service during which the employee has completed 1000 hours of service
and is employed on the last day of the plan year. The Profit Sharing Plan does not require any specific contribution but any
contribution made is subject to the restrictions set forth above for the Money Purchase Plan. Contributions and related
administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 amounted to $800,962, $339,973, and
$600,346, respectively.

{9) Debt:

The Company maintains a credit agreement with abank. The interest rate on the loan is fixed, at the Company’s option, for
aperiod of one to six months. The Company has elected to pay interest on a monthly basis at an effective rate of approximately
2.5% on the outstanding principal balance of the loan at December 31,2001 of $2,458,413. The interest rate was equal to
the bank’s Adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate at the time of the interest rate adjustment period, plus .5625 of |%.
Principal repayments are paid quarterly in equal installments of $1,250,000 and end on June 30, 2002. The Company has the
option to prepay amounts in excess of the required repayments. The Company has a choice of interest rates as follows: (1)
the bank’s Adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate at the time of the interest rate adjustment period or (2) the higher of the
bank’s prime rate or the applicable Federal Funds Rate, plus 1/2 of 1%, or (3) the bank’s adjusted certificate of deposit rate,
plus .775 of | %.

The credit agreement requires the Company to maintain a minimum net worth of $125,000,000 plus 50% of net profits
earned during each year on a cumulative basis. In addition, other significant covenants include limitations on total indebted-
ness, investment purchases, pledging and sales of assets and requires the Company’s insurance subsidiaries to maintain a
certain statutory surplus, gross and net premiums written to surplus ratios and total liabilities to surplus ratio. The Company
was in compliance with all financial covenants as stipulated in the credit agreement as of December 31, 2001. The credit
agreement also provides for a facility fee of . | 5 of 9% on the outstanding balance of the loan.

In November 2001, the Company borrowed $5,452,840 from a bank under a short-term credit facility. Interest on the loan
is equal to 6.75% which is the bank’s prime rate plus 200 basis points. Loan repayments are expected to be completed by the
end of 2002.

Interest paid amounted to $356,676, $709,565 and $1,057,993 for the years ended December 31,2001,2000 and 1999,
respectively.

In 1998, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement (the “agreement”) with a bank for purposes of hedging
its interest rate risk on its existing bank loan. The agreement requires the Company to pay interest to the bank at arate of
6.50% on the original notional amount outstanding of $22,500,000, which is subsequently adjusted quarterly by notional
reductions of $1,250,000. The bank is required to pay the Company, on the same notional amounts outstanding, an amount
equal to the three month US Dollar London Interbank Offered Rate plus .65% which is reset on a quarterly basis. Theinterest
expense (benefit) recorded under the agreement was $65,789 in 2001, $(67,626) in 2000 and $91,462 in 1999.

(10} Commitments:

The Company maintains various operating leases to occupy office space. The lease terms expire on various dates through
July, 2004.
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The aggregate minimum annual rental payments under various operating leases for office facilities as of December 31, 2001
are as follows:

Arnount
2002 et e e e st e aeaes $1,234412
2003 e bt et a e nr e vaeas 1,207,080
T EFEATEEN cvvveevereeece ettt sat e srare e s seesesssbs s s srsesssaesssbesesanes 1,589
[ L] v RO $2,443,081

The operating leases also include provisions for additional payments based on certain annual cost increases. Rent expenses
for the years ended December 31,2001, 2000, and 1999 amounted to $1,060,103, $1,104,187, and $1,285,950, respectively.

The Company is not involved in any litigation which would require disclosure in the financial statements or could reasonably
be expected to have a material effect on the Company'’s financial statements.

In order to provide corporate capital for the underwriting operations of MMO London, the Company has an unsecured
letter of credit from a bank in British Pounds Sterling with a US dollar equivalent of approximately $14.7 million as of
December 31,2001.

(1) Comprehensive lncome:
The Company’s comparative comprehensive income is as follows:

Year ended December 31,
20010 2000 1999
Netincome (Oss) ..cceeerereriiriicrrireeceerereeeaeesesesesesessens $(13,138,993) $(5,502,114) $16,413,261

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on securities,
net of deferred tax benefit (expense) of
$778,602, $(2,076,283), and $700,490 ......ccoocvreenee (1,445,975) 3,855,952 (1,300,911
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains realized
in netincome, net of tax expense of

$(1,006,101), $(1,836,381), and $(4,376,300) .......... 1,868,472 3,410,421 8,127,425
Foreign currency translation adjustment .........c.ceeervvvrccunnes 326,539 541,119 (76,817)
Other comprehensive income (Joss) .....c.oeveririiniecnnns (2,987,908) 986,650 (9,505,153)
Total comprehensive iNcome (10SS) .......cc.eveererrrevrereeererennnns $(16,126,901) $(4,515464) $ 6,908,108

The Company recorded unrealized holding gains on securities, net of deferred taxes, of $7,118,300 and $10,432,747 as of
December 31,2001 and 2000, respectively. The Company recorded foreign currency translation adjustments of $81 1,880
and $485,341 as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

(12) Common Stock Repurchase Plan and Shareholders’ Equity:

The Company has acommon stock repurchase plan which authorizes the repurchase of up to $55,000,000, at prevailing
market prices, of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares of common stock on the open market. As of December 31,
2001, the Company had repurchased a total of 2,639,868 shares of common stock under this plan at a total cost of
$45,219,570 at market prices ranging from $12.38 to $28.81 per share.

In connection with the acquisition of MMQOin 1991, the Company also acquired 3,215,958 shares of its own common stock
held by MMO and recorded such shares as treasury stock at MMO’s original cost of $3,919,129.
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A reconciliation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for each of the years ended December 31,2001, 2000 and
1999 is as follows: :

2001 2000 1999
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Net Shares Per Net Shares Per Net Shares Per
Loss Outstanding Share Loss Outstanding Share lncome OQutstanding Share

(In thousands except per share data)

Basic EPS $(13,139) 9,232 $(1.42) $(5,502) 9,244 $(.60) $16413 9,687 $1.69
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Stock Options — — — — — — — — —

Diluted EPS  $(13,139) 9,232 $(142)  $(5502) 9244  §$(60) $16413 9,687  $1.69

{13) Stock Plans:

The Company has a stock option plan, which was approved by shareholdersin 1991, and provides a means whereby the
Company, through the grant of non-qualified stock options to key officers, may attract and retain persons of ability as officers
to exert their best efforts on behalf of the Company. The plan authorizes the issuance of options to purchase up to 500,000
shares of the Company’s common stock at not less than 95 percent of the fair market value at the date of grant. Options are
exercisable over a period as determined in each option agreement and expire at a maximum term of ten years.

A summary of activity under the stock option plan for the years ended December 31,2001, 2000, and 1999 follows:

2001 2000 1999
Number Option Number Option  Number Option
Shares Under Option of Price of Price of Price
Shares Per Share Shares Per Share Shares Per Share
Cutstanding,
beginning of year 318,500  $12.00-$20.25 255,500 $12.05-$20.25 228,200  $15.56-$22.92
Granted 10,000 $17.67 65,000 $12.00-$14.13 140,000  $12.05-$15.00
Exercised (105,266)  $12.00-$20.25 (500) $15.79 — —
Forfeited — — (1,500) $15.79 (112,700) $15.56-$22.92
Qutstanding,
end of year 223,234 $12.00-$20.25 318,500  $12.00-$20.25 255,500  $12.05-$20.25
Exercisable, »
end of year 140,566  $12.00-$20.25 192,167  $12.05-$20.25 138,000  $15.56-$20.25

The Company has elected to measure compensation expense for employee stock options under APB No. 25 as permitted
by SFAS 123, "Accounting for Stock Based Compensation". Under SFAS 123, the Company is required to disclose the pro
forma effects on netincome of applying a fair value method of measuring compensation expense.

The pro forma effect on the years ended December 31,2001, 2000 and 1999 is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Netincome (10ss) - as reported .........cccoueerririrerernrnereerereeenns $(13,138,993) $(5,502,114) $16,413,261
Net income (105s) - Pro formMa ....c.eveveieeeuecnenerniceeeereererenenes $(13,189,343)  $(5,655,392)  $16,280,784
Diluted EPS - as reported .......cc.oveeeeeeeericeeeeineeenceseerecenanenes $(1.42) $(.60) $1.69
Diluted EPS - pro forma ........ccvveeeeercrceieee s $(1.43) $(61) $1.68
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In determining the pro forma effect on netincome, the fair value of options granted in 2001, 2600, 1999, 1998 and 1996 was
estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions in
2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1996, respectively; dividend yield of 0%, 3.0%, 3.0%, 1.9% and 2.2%; expected volatility of
25%,25%, 25%, 28% and 25%; expected lives of 5 years for each year and a risk-free interest rate of 4.42%, 4.75%, 6.48%,
4.56% and 6.00%. There were no options granted in 1997.

The full impact of calculating compensation expense for stock options under SFAS 123 is not reflected in the pro forma net
income amounts presented above because options granted prior to January |, 1995 are not considered in the determination
of the compensation expense.

in 1999, the Company established the NYMAGIC, Inc. Phantom Stock Plan (the “Plan”). The purpose of the Plan is to build
and retain a capable experienced long-term management team and key personnel to promote the success of the Company.
Each share of phantom stock granted under the Plan constitutes a right to receive in cash the appreciation in the fair market
value of one share of the Company’s stock, as determined on the date of exercise of such share of phantom stock over the
measurement value of such phantom stock. In 1999, 100,000 shares of phantom stock were granted to employees with a five-
year vesting schedule. In 2001 and 2000, 25,000 shares and 15,000 shares were exercised at market prices ranging from $18
to $20.60 per share, and $13 to $13.6875 per share, respectively. The Company recorded an expense of $319,175,
$410,000 and $263,750 in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

{14) Segment Information:

The Company’s subsidiaries include two domestic insurance companies, three domestic agencies, and MMO London.
MMO London includes the operations of MMO EU and MMO UK. The Company considers the domestic insurance
companies/agencies and MMO London as appropriate segments for purposes of evaluating the Company’s overall
performance. The Company evaluates revenues and income or loss by these segments. Revenues include premiums earned,
commission income, and investment income. Netincome or loss includes total revenues, less the sum of losses incurred, policy
acquisition costs, other expenses, and income taxes.

In 2002, MMO UK is not expected to provide capacity to any Lloyd’s syndicate.
The financial information by segment s as follows:

2001 2000 1999

(In thousands)

Revenues, excluding net investment income and realized gains:

Domestic Insurance Companies/Agencies ............coceerenne. $73,951 $50,538 $44,275
MMOLONAON ..ot 14,279 26,872 14,446
Other (includes corporate operations and

consolidating adjustments) .......c.cccccevurciiniieiniennes — — (372)
TOLRL ettt en e b e s en e b st $88,230 $77.410 $58,349

Netinvestment income:

Domestic Insurance Companies/Agencies ..........ouovvviiinen. $16,536 $16,941 $17,904
MMO LONAON ..ottt ser st sae s beresoae 823 1,087 721
Other (includes corporate operations and ~

consolidating adjustments) ..o, 29 48 17
TOAL ..ottt , $17,388 $18,076 $18,642
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2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Realized gains (losses) on investments:
Domestic Insurance Companies/Agendies ............ccoverenee $ 2,718 $ 5,349 $ 12,589
MMO LoNdON ..cceoniirireierrieccneniee e ensssnr e erererenens 152 (102) (85)
Other (includes corporate operations and
consolidating adjuStments) ........occeevviiireiereineieneisinenns 5 — —_
TOUAL ...ttt s ene et st e $ 2875 $ 5247 $ 12,504
Income (loss) before tax expense:
Domestic Insurance Companies/Agencies ..........c.cceeeeenen. $ (4,108) $ 16,078 $ 25452
MMO LONAON ..ot niesesesorosese e erene (6,968) (17,704) (1,119)
Other (includes corporate operations and
consolidating adjustMments) .......c.co.eeurveereecnrnrererereneensione (1,763) (4,033) (3,154)
TOA ettt s $ (12,839) $ (5,659) $ 21,179
Income tax expense (benefit):
Domestic Insurance Companies/Agencies ............ceweeereeee $ (1,765) $ 3,109 $ 5,448
MMO LORAON .ottt ss et ss e bssesens 2,926 (2,352) (115)
Other (includes corporate operations and
consolidating adjustments) .........ccoecveinnniicnninnns e (861) (914) (567)
TOA vttt eee et b ere e saens $ 300 $ (I57) $ 4,766
Netincome (loss):
Domestic Insurance Companies/Agencies ...........cccvwererenes $ (2,343) $ 12,969 $ 20,004
MMO LONAON «.ecvreeiricicreiseniresse s sneereceseseseene (5,894) (15,352) (1,004)
Other (includes corporate operations and
consolidating adjuStMENts) .....ccocceeereerererereeeserieresssens (902) 3,119) (2,587)
TOTAL ..ttt e e es stk $ (13,139 $ (5,502) $ 16413
ldentifiable assets at year end:
Domestic Insurance Companies/Agencies ..........o.eeeererenes $788,176 $650,146 $708,598
MMO LONdON wcveverriiireiiriieesree et sssesseseseseneas 60,976 61,358 41,019
Other (includes corporate operations and
consolidating adjustments) ............coenvmrcninic s, 7,845 8,825 14,687
TOCAL ..ttt ettt st e e $856,997 $720,329 $764,304
The Company’s gross written premiums cover risks in the following geographic locations:
2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
United SEALES ..ecvvvieiiereeiceiereieereeee e sesres e en e reseseseen $ 80,945 $ 66,492 $ 72,881
BUFOPE oot 41,334 47,746 20,146
ASIZ et s et pe e n e re e 15,803 12,332 15,302
Latin AMETICA .....c.ccvieeieieeee et 2,646 2,406 2,798
GHNET wovevireeeceeertte et reta oo senes e et s snsasessessseseasesereens 6,915 5,618 7,282
Total Gross WIitten Premilms ..o...ovevviveoeeeeenresineresssessesnes $147,643 $134,594 $118,409
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(15 Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited):
The quarterly financial data for 2001 and 2000 are as follows:
Three Months Ended
March 31, [une3®, Sept.30, Dec. 3l,

2001 2001 2001 2001
(In thousands, except per share data)
TOTAI FEVEIUSS ..oeeveveeeeeenererereeneseeessesesereeseensssesesesessesessons $27,925 $22,239 $ 18,794 $39,533
Income (loss) before iNCOME taXES ........coveverrerrrerurersseniniens $3372 $ 532 $(20429) $ 3,685
INEEINCOME (I055) worer s veerserseesreres e s e $ 1749 $ 36 $(17.358) $ 2433
Basic earnings (10ss) Per Share .........cce.ceeereirieresrenrneosnens $ 149 $ o000 $ (8 $ 26
Diluted earnings (oss) per Share .........c..ccoeeeureererriecrenennns $ 19 $ 00 $ (87 $ 26

Three Months Ended
March 31, June30, Sept.30, Dec.3l,

2000 2000 2000 2000
(In thousands, except per share data)
TOAl FEVENUES ..eveveveverreeiieieeesiris s sassesesesboressssesassesrons $27,132 $20,455  $20,360 $32,786
Income (loss) before INCOME taXes .......c.covvvrvererrrensereirenens $ 3459 % 1,132 $(3,800) $(6450)
NEtINCOME (I0SS) c..vuevrierierrrriereitineienseeseeetsieseensesssasesaes $ 2495 $ 1,087 $(2,781) $(6,303)
Basic earnings (10ss) per Share ........c..ccvveeveenrerereenireennnes $ 26 $ 12 $ (300 $ (89
Diluted earnings (loss) per share ..........cocevvernernerecorernens $ 26 $ 2 % (300 $ (69

(16) Related Party Transactions:

The Company made payments of $1,056, $145,960, and $212,259 in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively, to the firm of
Kensington & Ressler L.L.C. for legal services. Costa Kensington, a director of the Company, is a partner in the firm of
Kensington &Ressler L.L.C.

The Company has net premiums of $1.5 million in 2001, $747,000 in 2000, and $1.2 million in 1999 written through I.
Arthur Yanoff & Co, Ltd., an insurance brokerage at which Glenn R. Yanoff, a director of the Company, is avice president and
insurance underwriter. In connection with the placement of such business, net commission expenses of $299,000, $102,000,
and $194,000in 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively, were incurred by the Company on these transactions.
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NYMAGIC, INC.
Balance Sheets
(Parent Company)
December 31,
2001 _ 2000
Assets:
CASH 1ot e ebe b sh e et bt et eare b re et e s b ennsenresatens $ 167,573 $ 7,149
SROIT-LEIrM INVESTIMENTS ...ocvviiveeeieeeiiieetie ettt estreeste e vs e e et estaesasesssasrnesatesraesesnees 488,774 4035917
INVEStMENTIN SUDSIIANIES .vveivveivieevee ettt re e e e et serneesne s eeas 196,740,969 214,705,032
Due from subsidiaries and MMO insurance pools. ..o, 7,175,220 4,690,341
OthEF @SSELS. 1.viiuiiriieeeeeeteste et st eee st eresbeessesbsesbesanesabessasssesnsorsesteentessbensannrens 2,911,282 2,683,484
TOLAl ASSOLS ..vcvviriereiereirrectecte it et et erb e tectesbe e e s e eresebe s b esnr et s erssrserneeresraesrteene $207,483,818 $226,121,923
Liabilities:
NOES PAYADIE. ......vcurmirciriiieciieieiecieese bttt sa st s st ses e $ 7911253 § 7458413
Other IADIlItIES ..vvvoviviirei ittt ettt sre vt st e b st sresses e e seoneebesneenseesrban 300,698 2,373,801
TOLAl IADIlTIES +vevieveireceeeeiiiee sttt sas et st eeraesr s et erb e ree s ssnasannees 8,211,951 9,832,214
Shareholders’ equity:
COMIMON SEOCK 1vvvviiieeiitie it stesete e et esbbeetatestesssssssssssessbesssnbesssessstossessrssssasssanes 15,123,658 15,018,392
Paid-in CEPILA] ... .ecvv v e 29,702,414 27,992,916
Accumulated other comprehensive inCome ... 7,930,180 10,918,088
Retained @arnings .........ccecemrererereinieieieerereriereesesetetsrererere et e statasssesnnne 195,654,314 211,565,023
TrEASUIY STOCK ..ecevevirereieieterc ettt ettt s (49,138,699) (49,204,710)
Total SharehOIders' €QUITY w.......ovooccoveeverressceeereresessnssseeeesssssssesesesesseseonseee 199,271,867 216,289,709
Total liabilities and shareholders' @quUIty ...........cocvvreeererninseinrsssisssseeeeseens $207,483,818 $226,121,923
Statements of Income
(Parent Company)
Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Revenues:
Cash dividends from subsidiary ............ccceoneuveeicrneiniencnieen, $ 12,550,000 $15,475,000 $19,175,000
Net investment and other INCOME ........ccociveiivecvreceeinivennnea 34,093 48,277 17,122
12,584,093 15,523,277 19,192,122
Expenses:
Operating EXPENSES ........courvrvreeeieeieiererersiniessesseareresessessasasssons 1,797,523 4,081,494 3,171,627
Income tax Benefit .....c.ccoeerrriereresi e (861,278) (913,651) (567,028)
936,245 3,167,843 2,604,599
Income before equity iINCOME .....oiueveeeeieciciiececieee 11,647,848 12,355,434 16,587,523
Equity in undistributed loss of subsidiaries ...........cccoiinnnrenn (24,786,841) (17,857,548) (174,262)
Met INCOmME fOSS) ...cerveeercireerreeiree et $(13,138,993)  $(5502,114) $16,413,261
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NYMAGIC, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows
{Parent Company)
Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999

Cash flows from operating activities:

NEtINCOME (JOSS) vv.vvvervrirerircteiieeessiessse s ssess et ses e sentens $(13,138,993)  $(5,502,114) $ 16413261
Adjustments to reconcile netincome
to cash provided by operating activities:

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries ................... 24,786,841 17,857,548 174,262

Decrease (increase) in other assets .......ccovverererereerecernnans (227,797) (227,097) 13,604

Decrease (increase) in due from subsidiaries ...........c.......... (2,484,879) 10,513,611 (538,297)

(Decrease) increase in other liabilities .........ccoevvvvrrvrenians (1,157,300) 542,484 659,301
Net cash provided by operating activities .............ccceereervnee 7,777,872 23,184,432 16,722,131
Cash flows from investing activities:

Short-term investments acqUIred .........cweeuereeeeerurernenenene (15,201) (3,562,344) (7,767,122)

Short-term investments Matured ......cooveevevereeesreeerersaeranees 3,562,344 7,293,550 —

Investment in subsidiaries .........cccevvvireereeeemnrr e (9.810,687) (11,575,066) —
Net cash used in iNvesting aCVItIEs .......ccoceverrercrcnereriersrceenes (6,263,544) (7,843,860) (7,767,122)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from stock issued and other .........ccooveerevrrennnan. 1,814,764 57,509 (93,503)

Cash dividends paid to stockholders ........c.cccceverenrnnierinnne (3,687,519) (3,721,755) (3,875,319)

Net repurchase of common stock .....ccceevererninernecereranens 66,011 (6,724,922) 22,442

Proceeds from borrowings .......cceevverieeceeienerecereseererenens 5,452,840 —_ —

Loan principal Payments ..........cceeeveerenererseeseresesssssreserens (5,000,000) (5,000,000) (5,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activities ...........cecereverurneerereererernenes (1,353,904) (15,389,168) (8,946,380)
Netincrease (decrease) in cash. .....ccovvvreeninirreceee e 160,424 (48,596) 8,629
Cash atbeginning of period .........covrreiieeesennninreneineererenene 7,149 55,745 47,116
Cash atend of Period ......coveureereeereensereeneeeesrensrssessaesessnsens 167,573 $ 7,149 $ 55,745

The condensed financial information of NYMAGIC, INC. for the years ended December 31,2001, 2000 and 1999 should
be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements of NYMAGIC, INC. and subsidiaries and notes thereto.
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SCHEDULE V - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000

COLUMNA COLUMNB COLUMNC COLUMND COLUMNE
Balance at Balance at
beginning close of

DESCRIPTION of period Additions Deductions period

December 31, 20010:
Allowance for
doubtful accounts $8,112,257 $11,027,039 $(1,082,896) $18,056,400
December 31, 2000:
Allowance for
doubtful accounts $8,321,388 $1,375,536 $(1,584,667) $8,112,257

The allowance for doubtful accounts on reinsurance receivables amounted to $ 17,606,400 and $7,662,257 at December
31,2001 and 2000, respectively. The allowance for doubtful accounts on premiums and other receivables amounted to

$450,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2000.

SCHEDULE VI - SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION CONCERNING PROPERTY/CASUALTY

INSURANCE OPERATIONS
(In thousands)
Deferred Reserve for v
Affiliation Policy = Unpaid Claims Unearned Net Net
with Acquisition  and Claims Premium Earned Investment
Registrant Costs Expenses Discount Reserve Premiums Income
December 31,2001
Consolidated Subsidiaries  $8,!68 $534,189 — $65,071 $84,633 $17,359
December 31, 2000
Consolidated Subsidiaries 5,354 411,267 — 60,436 75,448 18,014
December 31, 1999
Consolidated Subsidiaries 4,851 425,469 — 56,033 56,155 18,624
Claims and Claims Amortization
Expenses Incurred of Deferred
Affilation Related to Policy Paid Claims
with Current Prior Acquisition and Claims Premiums
Registrant Year Years Costs Expenses Written
December 31,2001
Consolidated Subsidiaries $78,221 $9,604 $16,083 $76,557 $89,692
December 31, 2000
Consolidated Subsidiaries 76,425 (8,484) 18,178 65,121 89,238
December 31, 1999
Consolidated Subsidiaries 48,838 (12,183) 11,077 53,379 56,106
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